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RESULTS

ES |

2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Revenue Yz 489,853 297,066 293,820
Gross profit EH 144,984 74,534 44411
Profit for the year F N F 93,206 42,851 20,772

Profit attributable to: AT SEEGREF
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEA 92,150 4,778 20,744
Non-controlling interests RS 1,056 73 28
93,206 42,851 20772
Total Assets mEE 227,200 144,341 91733
Total Liabilities wafk 110,324 88,210 52,459




On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the first annual report of the Group

for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 for the Shareholders’ consideration.

AN IMPORTANT MILESTONE

The year of 2012 is an important milestone in the history of the Group. The
Company was successfully listed on the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2012 with
net proceeds raised amounting to approximately HK$65.0 million. The public offer
tranche of the initial public offering was oversubscribed by approximately 20 times
when the general atmosphere of the Hong Kong stock market was low. The
successful listing provided the Group with an enhanced financial position, strengths, a
broader shareholder base of the Company and increased transparency and goodwill
of the Group. These remarkable developments will provide the Group with a solid

foundation for further growth.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year 201 |, we recorded positive growth in our revenue, which increased by
approximately 23.2% from approximately HK$489.9 million to approximately
HK$603.7 million on a year-on-year basis, primarily due to an increase in air cargo
handled by the Group from approximately 29,114 tons for the year ended 31
December 2010 to approximately 35,103 tons for the year ended 31 December
2011, despite the fact that for the year ended 3| December 201 | Hong Kong's air
cargo throughput decreased 4.6% year-on-year. Our gross profit margin was
successfully maintained at approximately 30.7% during the year (2010: approximately
29.6%) despite the recent downturn of the European and North American markets
in the midst of the Euro zone sovereign debt crisis and the weakening U.S. economy.
We managed to achieve these increases primarily through the Group's continued
focus on providing air cargo services covering the destinations in Asia-Pacific region.
The profit attributable to Shareholders increased by approximately 5.5% from
approximately HK$92.2 million in 2010 to approximately HK$97.3 million in 2011,
primarily due to our efficient operation model, critical mass of business, successful

wholesale market position and extensive portfolio of air cargo routes.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

CHALLENGES AHEAD

For the coming months in 2012, we expect uncertainties in global economy will
continue and market nervousness concerning the fiscal positions of several
European countries may also pose challenges for the world economy. In addition,
Premier Wen Jiabao of the PRC announced recently that the China’s targeted GDP
growth in 2012 is 7.5%, down from 8% over the past seven years, which may also
pose challenges for the economy in China. We remain optimistic on the outlook of
our business. In order to increase market share and capture growth opportunities in
our target markets, we will utilise all efforts to maintain and reinforce our
competitive strengths such as (i) our critical mass of business; (ii) our wholesale
market positioning; (iii) the extensive portfolio of air cargo routes; (iv) our business
focus on deferred air freight services and developing countries; (v) our experienced
management team and (vi) our continuous effort to enter into China and Asia
markets by increasing the number of local branches and offices in the coming vears.
We will further grow our business by expanding our market and service network
and our products and portfolio of air cargo routes, setting up logistics hub centres in

Southern China and establishing an e-platform booking system.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my profound gratitude to the
Group’s management and staff for their relentless efforts and devoted services, and
to our Shareholders, business partners and professional advisors for their

continuous support.

Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

Positioning in the wholesale market enables the Group to secure an extensive
network of freight forwarders as its customers. During 2011, the Group handled
approximately 35,103 tons of cargos for over 1,000 freight forwarders, out of which,
the top 100 freight forwarders contributing to approximately 72.9% of the total
sales for the year. The strong customer base helped the Group strengthening its

business relationships with airlines and integrated carriers over the years.

The majority of air cargo space that the Group on-sell is for the outbound air
routes originating from the Pearl River Delta, predominantly from Hong Kong, to
various destinations around the world. For the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Group was marketing and on-selling air cargo space allocated by over 30 airlines
and integrated carriers covering almost every major airport in the world. As a result,
the freight forwarding customers can always rely on the Group to provide them
with the optimal air cargo solutions, in terms of delivery time and competitive
prices, by bundling air routes from different airlines and integrated carriers in order

to satisfy the requirements of our customers.

The Group enjoyed growth in revenue and profitability in 201 |. The key factors
contributing to the Group’s continuous growth in 201 | are the Group's competitive
strengths which mainly include (i) its critical mass of business, (ii) its wholesale
market positioning, (iii) its extensive portfolio of air cargo routes, (iv) its business
focus on the deferred air freight segment and the developing countries and (v) its

experienced management team.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DM

PROSPECTS

The Group's goal is to become one of the leading air freight solution providers in
Asia built on its established business model in Hong Kong. To this end, the Group
plans to (i) continue to improve and expand the service network by setting up
additional branches and subsidiaries in China, Europe and Asia which will improve
the network coverage by strengthening the geographical presence as well as
improve the service with local staff providing administrative support; (i) continue to
expand the portfolio of air cargo routes by engaging with approximately 12
additional airlines in the form of either non-committed purchases or firm
commitments by 2013 with focus on air routes coverage in China, Asia and Europe,
subject to the evaluation of the portfolio with regard to profitability and
compatibility as a result of such additional airlines; (iii) establish an e-platform
booking system for the Group's business to streamline the booking system; and (iv)
set up logistics hub centres in Southern regions of China such as Dongguan and
Shenzhen for transshipment, storage, collection and distribution of cargos on behalf

of the customers.

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue for 2011 amounted to approximately HK$603.7 million,
representing a growth of approximately 23.2% as compared to 2010 primarily as a
result of an increase in air cargo handled by our Group from approximately 29,114
tons for the year ended 3| December 2010 to approximately 35,103 tons for the
year ended 3| December 201 1.

REVENUE FOR THE REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

Revenue derived from flight destinations in the Asia-Pacific region increased by
approximately HK$101.3 million or 42.0% to approximately HK$342.5 million for
the year 201 | (2010: approximately HK$241.2 million). The increase in revenue was
primarily due to our Group's continued focus on providing air cargo services
covering the destinations in Asian countries and entering into new purchasing

arrangements with airlines/integrated carriers.

Revenue derived from flight destinations in Europe increased by approximately
HK$16.3 million or 13.0% to approximately HK$141.4 million for the year 2011
(2010: approximately HK$125.1 million). The increase in revenue in this region was
primarily due to our Group's continued effort in providing air cargo services

covering the destinations in Europe and Russia.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenue derived from flight destinations in America decreased by approximately
HK$47.5 million or 52.1% to approximately HK$43.7 million for the year 201 |
(2010: HK$9 1.2 million). The decrease in revenue in this region was primarily due to
the weak demands for air cargo services and the fall in freight rates in relation to
destinations in North America resulting from the downturn of American markets in

the midst of the Euro zone sovereign debt crisis and the weakening U.S. economy.

Revenue derived from flight destinations in Africa increased by approximately
HK$43.8 million or 135.6% to approximately HK$76.1 million for the year 201 |
(2010: approximately HK$32.3 million). The increase in revenue in this region was
primarily due to our Group's continued focus on providing air cargo services
covering the destinations in Africa and entering into new purchasing arrangements
with airlines/integrated carriers in the fourth quarter of the year 2010 for serving

the flight destinations in Africa.

COST OF SALES AND GROSS PROFIT
Cost of sales mainly includes purchases of air cargo space from airlines, integrated

carriers and freight forwarders.

In 2011, the overall cost of sales for the Group amounted to approximately
HK$418.2 million (2010: approximately HK$344.9 million) which represented an
increase of approximately 21.3%. Cost of sales increased to a lesser extent than
revenue for the year. The overall gross profit of the Group increased by
approximately 28.0% from approximately HK$145.0 million in 2010 to
approximately HK$185.6 million in 201 1. The overall gross profit margin in 2011 was
approximately 30.7% (2010: approximately 29.6%), which was primarily attributable
to our Group's continued focus on providing air cargo services covering the

destinations in Asia-Pacific region.

GROSS PROFIT FOR THE REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in the Asia-Pacific region increased by
approximately 39.4% from approximately HK$115.0 million in 2010 to
approximately HK$160.3 million in 2011, which was primarily attributable to our
Group's continued focus on providing air cargo services covering the destinations in

Asian countries.

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in Europe decreased by approximately
32.1% from approximately HK$22.1 million in 2010 to approximately HK$15.0
million in 2011, which was primarily attributable to the lower-than-expected profit
growth in providing air cargo services covering the destinations in Western Europe

due to the Euro zone sovereign debt crisis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DM

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in America decreased by approximately
30.4% from approximately HK$5.6 million in 2010 to approximately HK$3.9 million
in 2011, which was primarily attributable to our Group's lesser focus on providing air

cargo services covering the destinations in America.

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in Africa increased by approximately
178.3% from approximately HK$2.3 million in 2010 to approximately HK$6.4 million
in 2011, which was primarily attributable to our Group’s continued focus on

providing air cargo services covering the destinations in Africa.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly consist of: (i) staff costs for management and
operational employees; (ii) travelling expenses; (iii) marketing and promotion
expenses; (iv) rents and rate; (v) auditor's remuneration; and (vi) other
administrative expenses including communication expenses, motor vehicles expenses
and legal and professional fees. In 2011, the Group's administrative expenses
amounted to approximately HK$71.0 million (2010: approximately HK$40.2 million),
which accounted for approximately |1.8% of the Group's turnover (2010:
approximately 8.2%).The increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to the

one-off listing and related expenses incurred during the year.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs represent interest expenses on the Group's bank borrowings.

INCOME TAX
Income tax mainly represents the tax expenses incurred in relation to the

operations of the Group in the PRC, Macau and Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROFITABILITY

In 2011, the Group’s profit attributable to Shareholder amounted to approximately
HK$97.3 million (2010: approximately HK$92.2 million), representing an increase of
approximately 5.5% as compared to 2010. The increase was mainly due to an
increase in revenue by approximately 23.2% as compared to 2010. Margin of profit
attributable to Shareholder for the year was approximately 16.1% (2010:
approximately 18.8%), representing a decrease of approximately 2.7 percentage

points as compared to 2010.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s return on equity was
approximately 86.2% (2010: approximately 79.5%), which is calculated as profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company divided by equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company, representing an increase of approximately 6.7
percentage points as compared to 2010. The Group's relatively higher return on
equity recorded was a result of an increase in the Group'’s profit attributable to

Shareholder due to the increase in revenue as compared to 2010.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trade receivables (net) increased by around 0.1% from approximately
HK$71.5 million as at 31 December 2010 to approximately HK$71.6 million as at 3|
December 2011, the increase in trade receivables was mainly due to the increase in

revenue. The average trade receivables turnover days decreased from 45 days in

2010 to 43 days in 201 1.

The Group’s policy in respect of allowance for doubtful debts for 2011 was the
same as that in 2010. Our Group did not make any general allowance for doubtful
debts and no specific allowance for doubtful debts was considered necessary and
provided for 2011 (2010: nil). For the year ended 3| December 2011, bad debts
written-off amounted to HK$91,312 (2010: HK$198,040).

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group's trade payables generally primarily relate to the shorter credit term
provided by airlines, with credit terms of generally 15 to 60 days from trade
[1.7% from
approximately HK$68.6 million as at 31 December 2010 to approximately HK$60.6

payables. The Group's trade payables decreased by around

million as at 31 December 201 1. The average trade payables turnover days
decreased from 63 days in 2010 to 56 days in 201 I.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DM

OTHER PAYABLES

Other payables mainly represent (i) payroll and staff benefits payable; (ii) accrued
expenses for utilities; and (iii) payables for listing expenses. The balance of other
payables increased by approximately 157.6% to HK$17.0 million as at 31 December
2011 (31 December 2010: approximately HK$6.6 million) mainly due to an increase
in the number of staff as a result of the Group's business growth and the expenses

incurred in connection with the listing of the Shares.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities for the year 201 | amounted
to approximately HK$86.6 million (2010: approximately HK$107.7 million). As at 31
December 2011, cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$93.6
million, representing a net decrease of approximately HK$32.4 million as compared
with the position as at 31 December 2010. The decrease was mainly due to the

increase in dividend paid during the year 201 1.

The Group'’s short-term bank loans, amounted to approximately HK$15.9 million as

at 31 December 2010, was repaid during the current year

As at 3| December 2011, the Group had unused bank facilities of approximately
HK$53.6 million. During the year 2011, the Group did not hedge its exposure to
interest rate risks. As at 31 December 201 [, the gearing ratio, which was calculated

by dividing total bank borrowings over total assets, was 0% (2010: 7.0%).

As at 31 December 201 1, the Group had current assets of approximately HK$198.1
million (2010: approximately HK$214.8 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$98.3 million (2010: approximately HK$110.2 million). The current
ratio (which is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities) was

approximately 2.02 (2010: approximately 1.95).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$99.8 million. The key components of current assets as at 31 December 201 |
included trade receivables of approximately HK$71.6 million, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables of approximately HK$10.9 million and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$ 1.0 million. The key components of
current liabilities included trade payables of approximately HK$60.6 million, income
tax payable of approximately HK$20.7 million and other payables and accruals of

approximately HK$17.0 million.

The net current assets decreased from approximately HK$104.6 million as at 31
December 2010 to approximately HK$99.8 million as at 31 December 2011 which
primarily represents the decrease in cash and cash equivalents which is mainly due

to the increase in dividend paid during the year 201 I.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND GUARANTEES

The Group had an un-utilised bank facility of approximately HK$53.6 million as at 31
December 201 | and the facility was guaranteed by our executive Directors and
secured by the pledged deposits of approximately HK$21.0 million and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of our Group. Such guarantees given by our
executive Directors are to be released pending the execution of the corporate
guarantees by the relevant banks and the Company. Certain airlines and integrated
carriers would require their appointed cargo agents to deliver bank guarantees as
securities for purchase of air cargo space. As at 31 December 201 |, the guarantees
granted amounted to approximately HK$49.6 million (2010: approximately HK$19.5
million). Saved as disclosed above, we had no material contingent liabilities and

guarantees.

CONTRACTUAL AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had operating leases commitments of

approximately HK$5.0 million (2010: approximately HK$4.3 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DM

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi and United States dollars. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities. In 2011, the Group had not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the
exposure, after netting off the assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk, is
not very significant. However, our management will closely monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arise.

EMPLOYEES

As at 3| December 2011, the Group had 148 full-time employees (2010: |14 full-
time employees). The Group reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees
annually according to the relevant market practice and individual performance of the
employees. Save for the social insurance in China and the mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong, the Group has not set aside or accrued any amount of
money to provide for retirement or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs
incurred in 2011 were approximately HK$34.9 million (2010: approximately
HK$25.5 million).

USE OF NET PROCEEDS RECEIVED FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The Shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on |6
January 2012. The net proceeds received from the initial public offering were
approximately HK$65.0 million. Such net proceeds were deposited at the Group’s
bank account and will be used in the manner consistent with that mentioned in the
section headed "Future plans and proposed use of proceeds” of the Prospectus. In
the event that the Directors decide to use such net proceeds in a manner different
from that stated in the Prospectus, the Company will issue an announcement in

compliance with the Listing Rules.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for

the year ended 3| December 201 |,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is an air freight solution provider positioned in the wholesale market.
The Group principally involves purchasing air cargo space from airlines and/or
integrated carriers and on-selling such space to our customers, namely freight
forwarders. Airlines and integrated carriers generally engage their respective
appointed wholesalers and freight forwarders to market and/or on-sell their air
cargo space for ease of management, cost effectiveness and minimizing credit
exposure instead of dealing with a large pool of freight forwarders and shippers
themselves. The Group’s main role for airlines and integrated carriers is to source a
necessary amount of air cargos from freight forwarders on a timely basis to enable

them to maximise the utilisation of air cargo space of their aircrafts.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 49 to 50 of this annual

report.

The Directors recommend the payment of final dividend of HK$6.8 cents per
ordinary share in respect of current year to the Shareholders. Details of the

dividends are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

As at 3| December 201 [, distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
HK$37.6 million (2010: nil). Details of movements in reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to the

consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major customers and suppliers

respectively in the financial year were as follows:

FREFRMER
AEERMBEENAREIERP REEHE
HEVHERRBAT :

Year ended 3| December

BZ N A3 BLEE

2011 2010

% of total % of total

turnover turnover

HHEEREN HEEXREN

Bak B

The largest customer BRARF 6.0% 5.4%
Five largest customers EREP 16.9% 17.1%
% of total % of total

purchase purchase

HAREN 15 R H

BOl B

The largest supplier RAHER 24.9% 28.8%
Five largest suppliers hARHER 61.1% 59.8%

All of the above five largest customers and suppliers of the Group are independent
third parties. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
associates or any Shareholder holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company, has any interest in any of the Group's five largest customers and

suppliers as disclosed above.

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 3| December 201 I, the Group did not have long-term and short-term bank
loans (2010: short-term bank loan approximately was HK$15.9 million). Particulars
of the bank borrowings are set out in note |6 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during the year

are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

ORDINARY SHARES
Details of movements in ordinary shares of the Company during the year are set
out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to the consolidated financial

statements.

FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last four financial

years is set out on page 2 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of

association or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities since the listing of the Company’s shares on

16 January 2012.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are

as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr.Wei Jin Cai
Dr. Zhang Xianlin
Dr.Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony
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In accordance with article 86(3) of the Company’s articles of association, all the
Directors will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages

36 to 43 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
an unexpired service contract with any member of the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation

(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the financial year under review or at any time during the financial year

under review.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company of his/her
compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided to the Company under
a deed of non-competition in favour of the Company entered into on 29 December
2011 (details are disclosed in the Prospectus under the section headed “Relationship
with the Controlling Shareholders™). The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the

deed of non-competition have been complied with by the Controlling Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any time during the vear ended 3|

December 2011 and up to and including the date of this annual report.

PENSION SCHEME
In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly basis for its
employees. The Group has no further obligation for payment of post-retirement

benefits to employees beyond the aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme (the "MPF
Scheme™) in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group and are under the control of an independent trustee. Both the
Group and its employees are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ monthly
salaries. The mandatory contributions required to be made respectively by the
Group and an employee are each capped at HK$1,000 per month. Members are
entitled to 100% of the employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are
paid to the MPF Scheme but all benefits derived from the mandatory contributions
must be preserved until an employee reaches the retirement age of 65 or in

accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during

the year ended 3| December 201 1.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at the date of this report, the interests of the Directors in the shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance ('SFQO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") contained in the Listing Rules, are as

follows:

EEREARRGEEAEBREIEZR
7 HERAREERP2ERR R
RE
RARESHE - §$F$Qnﬁ Eﬂmwx
B (EEREHFRBEHEH (3
FEXVED) BEEZ X AE KD
FRE LR AT TR
R HREFA ([FE=PAI]) A
RErzBRGZESWT

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES RRONER
Number of
Director Nature of Interest Ordinary Shares Percentage
Ex EEME EBEREAE BOL
Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny Corporate 258,000,000 64.5%
RERFEE NG
Personal 34,000,000 8.5%
fEA
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard Corporate 258,000,000 64.5%
BERLE NG|
Personal 4,000,000 1.0%
fElA
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki Corporate 258,000,000 64.5%
BEREE NG|
Personal 4,000,000 1.0%
fE A

20 ASR Holdings Limited 2077 Annual Report



LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

Report of the Directors
EEERE

REBZENRORABERONTR

Director Name of Associated Corporation Percentage
= HEEE LR BAL
Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny ASR Victory 33.3%
RERTE
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard ASR Victory 33.3%
BEEEE
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki ASR Victory 33.3%
BERLAE

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not hold any short positions in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives or any of their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations which had been
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO as at the
date of this report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS ~ FERRRAATZBRAREBRH 2
IN THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY ERR%XR

As at the date of this report, the register of substantial Shareholders maintained RARERY  REEFRBEEHIFEI364
under Section 336 of the SFO shows that the Company had been notified of the ~ FEZTZRREZMER  AAGEMNET
following substantial Shareholders' interests and short positions, representing 5% or ~ JEERB 7 EZ AR BARB 2B BT

more of the Company's issued share capital: 5%k A L
Number of
Name Ordinary Shares Percentage
& EBEREE Bt
ASR Victory Limited (note 1) ASR Victory Limited (P 1) 258,000,000 64.5%
Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny (note 1) FEREE (PHFE1) 292,000,000 73.0%
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (note 1) BEERE (1) 262,000,000 65.5%
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki (note 1) BERTE (MFE1) 262,000,000 65.5%
Ms. Lip Fung Chun, Louise (note ) BEELL (1) 292,000,000 73.0%
Ms. Ng Hoi Shan (note 1) RgMLZL (FFFE1) 262,000,000 65.5%
Ms. Mardamshina Zhanna (note 1) Mardamshina Zhanna Z & (F7E 1) 262,000,000 65.5%
Note: P 5t -
(1) ASR Victory is beneficially owned as to 33.33% by each of Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. (1) ASR VictoryRERTE - ZEERTERE
Mak Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki. Ms. Lip Fung Chun, Louise, Ms. Ng Hoi ERTEBELHEA333% - REBHERPE
Shan and Ms. Mardamshina Zhanna, being the spouses of Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak fEpiExved  BEELZL  REMZ LR
Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki, respectively, are deemed to be interested in Mardamshina Zhanna# = (Bl&& R % 4 -
the shares held by ASR Victory under Part XV of the SFO. BEBEEREEERTENREB) D RIHRASR

Victory$ 5 #0154 A 3 o

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an interest of a short position in BREXHBEBREIN  BEAMATRAATZ
the shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company that was required B RBERNIEREFEBREES RS
=

to be recorded under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO. EBPIEXVEEEICIEE TR ZEERLAR
R o
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EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Worldwide Logistics is the beneficial owner of 40% shareholding in ASR Worldwide

and therefore is a Connected Person of our Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, ASR Logistics, AOE Freight and ASR
Worldwide had been supplying air cargo space to Worldwide Logistics. The supply of
air cargo space arrangement is of a continuing nature and will constitute continuing
connected transactions for our Company under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules
upon listing. However, such connected transactions were constituted only because
Worldwide Logistics is a Connected Person of our Company by virtue of its
relationship with our Company's subsidiary (i.e. ASR Worldwide) and Worldwide
Logistics has no other connected relationship with our Company. As the assets,
profits and revenue size test ratios of ASR Worldwide represent less than 5% for the
financial year 2011, ASR Worldwide is considered as an insignificant subsidiary of our
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.31(9)(b) of the Listing Rules and such connected
transactions will be exempted from all the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

Save as the above mentioned, no transaction was entered into by the Group during
the vear ended 31 December 2011 which constitute connected transactions under

the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 3| December 201 | is contained in note 3| to the consolidated financial

statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally adopted by the written resolutions of the sole Shareholder of the
Company passed on 3 December 2011, pursuant to which the Board may, at its
absolute discretion and on such terms as it may think fit, grants options to any
employee(s) (whether full time or part time including any Director) of any member
of the Group at the exercise price for such number of Shares as it may determine in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to enable the Board to grant options to selected employee(s) as

incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 40,000,000 Shares which represents
approximately 10% of the Shares in issue on the date of this report. The maximum
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company to any employee(s) (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding
options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the

Shares in issue from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine but in any event
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant. Save as determined by the Board
and provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum

holding period before an option is exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-one days inclusive
of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable to our Company on

acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.
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The exercise price is to be determined by the Board provided always that it shall be
at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the grant of
the option, which must be a trading day; and (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, provided that the

exercise price shall in no event be less than the nominal amount of one Share.

Since the listing of the Shares on 16 January 2012, no option has been granted

under the Share Option Scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as

required under the Listing Rules since the listing of the Shares on |6 January 2012.

MATERIAL LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS

During the reporting period, the Group had no material litigations and arbitrations.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant events took place subsequent to 31 December 201 1.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be

proposed at the annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny

Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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As the Company was listed on 16 January 2012 (the “Date of Listing"), the
Company was not required to comply with the requirements under the code
provisions set out in Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for the accounting period covered by

this annual report.

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for the period

from the date of listing to the date of this annual report (the “CG Period").

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Good corporate governance is conducive to enhancing the Group’s overall
performance and accountability is essential in modern corporate administration. The
Board, which includes three independent non-executive Directors out of a total of
six Directors, is responsible for setting strategic, management and financial objectives
and continuously observes the principles of good corporate governance and
devotes considerable effort to identifying and formalising best practice to ensure the

interests of Shareholders, including those of minority Shareholders, are protected.

The Company has adopted the CG Code as its corporate governance code of
practices upon listing of the Company's shares on the Main Borad of the Stock
Exchange. In the opinion of the Board, save as disclosed below, the Company has
complied with the CG Code or the continuing obligations requirements of a listed

issuer pursuant to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 201 1.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business and to review such practices
from time to time to ensure that they comply with the CG Code and align with the

latest developments.
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THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which currently comprises six
members, consisting of three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising the Company's affairs. All Directors take decisions

objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board met once during the CG Period for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies and

policies of the Company. Details of the attendance records are set out below:

Executive Directors

HTES

Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny RIERTE
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard EEMEE
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BERLE
Independent Non-executive Directors

VHHTES

Mr. Wei Jin Cai Rib S kA&
Dr. Zhang Xianlin REMIEL
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony B#HEEL

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Board includes a balanced composition of
executive and independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong
independent element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent

judgement.

The list of all Directors is set out under Corporate Information on page 2 and the
independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate

communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed under Biographies

of Directors and Senior Management on pages 36 to 43.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The positions of chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are
both currently carried on by Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny. The Board considers that the
structure currently operated by the Company does not undermine the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management. The Board members
have considerable experience and qualities which they bring to the Company and
the Board believes that it is able to ensure that the balance of power between the
Board and the management is not impaired. Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny has considerable
and extensive experience in the air cargo industry enterprise operation and
management in general. The Board believes that having the same person performing
the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer does provide the Group with
strong and consistent leadership and that, operating in this manner allows for more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning of the Group. Further, the decisions
of the Board are made collectively by way of voting and therefore the chairman of

the Board should not be able to monopolise the voting result.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to lead and control the business operations of the Group.
Decisions made are driven for the best interest of the Shareholders and maximizing
the Shareholders’ wealth. The Directors formulate strategic directions, oversee the
operations and monitor the financial and management performance of the Group as

a whole.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed
three independent non-executive Directors. All the independent non-executive
Directors have the appropriate qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence as required under the Listing Rules.
Independence of each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
assessed by the Board and the Board considers that all independent non-executive

Directors are independent as required under the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Each of the Directors has been appointed for a term of three years and shall be

subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself

for re-election by Shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of his
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under

the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory regime and the
business environment to enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices and to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing

and professional development for Directors will be arranged where necessary.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and

regulatory requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate effective and
efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, to identify and manage potential risks and to
safeguard assets of the Group. The internal auditor reviews and evaluates the
control process, monitors any risk factors on a regular basis, and reports to the
audit committee on any findings and measures to address the variances and

identified risks.

During the CG Period, the Board, through the audit committee, conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company. The review
covered the financial reporting and compliance procedures of the Group. The Board
also reviewed the qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting

and financial reporting function.

Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

EEZERER
SEERTIAHA=F "
FBRE—IR -

=

VTERRVE=F

BEARANARKERMA - FEEFHER
PE=FHFEERT A MEBBREZEHREM
AEZEMBEZENERATERHEREERE
BRRFERG LHRFEE -

EERERE
BRRMTEETNERBERZERRE - R
HADRAEXBREFBEE TRIZENEE
SELTRAREBEERAE THEERE
7% o

EXEREMEEREERIREBRENT#
HEYE  ARFAHERCEEZRAMNE
B U ERTRE EFNHBERRREX

ERERAEREREL -

BERER
ESARERARAMBRROER - BRZ
FMBBRRAFEERRAEBEOTHMR -
YR ERERRERERNGER -

AEENNREZRAR G A REABRRARE
HEME  ERBBRENASEREETE
FUEDIRAA - BRI REREERRIURRE
REBNEE - MEbZHE AT Binsd Rt
ERRF TEHEFRENAREE - MR
ERABHERLENEE R A ERNERE
MEZZEERE -

REXERDE ESSCERERREER

AADBABEEHENNA - ZRIRER
SENMBERRARER - EFETRAA
ARG R BERBESMIEIERRE

BMFEERERAT 2011 F#

29



30

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

EXTERNAL AUDITOR
The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s

Report on pages 44 to 45.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company's auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, amounted to approximately HK$1.8
million and HK$0.2 million in respect of the annual audit and non-audit services and
amounted to approximately HK$4.9 million in respect of the service for acting as

the reporting accountant in relation to the listing of the Company, respectively.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company's website and the website of the

Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The roles

and functions of the audit committee include the following:

*  to review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the internal auditor or external auditor before

submission to the Board;

*  to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to the work
performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and

removal of external auditor; and

*  to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system and associated

procedures.
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The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors (namely,
Dr.Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, Mr. Wei Jin Cai and Dr. Zhang Xianlin) who possess the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The chairman of the audit committee is Dr.Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, who is
an independent non-executive Director. None of the members of the audit
committee is a former partner of the Company's existing external auditor. The audit
committee has separate and independent access to the advice and services of the
senior management of the Company, and is able to seek independent professional

advice at the Company’s expense upon reasonable request.

The audit committee held two meetings during the CG Period and reviewed the
Group’s annual results and report for the year ended 3| December 2011, the
financial reporting and compliance procedures, the report of internal auditor from
the management on the Company’s internal control and risk management review
and processes, and the re-appointment of the external auditor, subject to approval

by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Details of the attendance records of the audit committee are set out below:

Member

&

Dr.Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony BHEEL
Mr. Wei Jin Cai Rib S kA&
Dr. Zhang Xianlin REMIEL
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The remuneration committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 I.

The roles and functions of the remuneration committee include the following:

*  making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the

senior management;

*  establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will

participate in deciding his own remuneration; and

*  determining annual remuneration package by reference to the performance of

the individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The remuneration committee comprises five members, namely, Dr. Tyen Kan Hee,
Anthony, Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard, Mr. Wei Jin Cai and Dr.
Zhang Xianlin, the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors. The
chairman of remuneration committee is Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, who is an
independent non-executive Director. One meeting was held by the remuneration
committee during the reporting period. All members attended the meeting. The
remuneration committee reviews its revised terms of reference during the meeting.

Details of the attendance records of the Remuneration Committee members are set

out below:

Member

HE

Dr.Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony BEHEEL

Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny REREE

Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEMEE

Mr. Wei Jin Cai BT EE

Dr. Zhang Xianlin REMEL
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The nomination committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The

roles and functions of the nomination committee include the following:
*  reviewing the Board structure;

*  monitoring the nomination, appointment and succession planning of Directors;

and
*  assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The nomination committee comprises five members, namely Dr. Tyen Kan Hee,
Anthony, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard, Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki, Mr. Wei Jin Cai and Dr.
Zhang Xianlin, the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors. The
chairman of the nomination committee is Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, who is an
independent non-executive Director. One meeting was held by the nomination
committee during the reporting period. All members attended the meeting. The
nomination committee reviews its revised terms of reference. Details of the

attendance records of the nomination committee members are set out below:

Member

291

Dr.Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony BHEEL
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEBEE
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BEREE
Mr. Wei Jin Cai BT EE
Dr. Zhang Xianlin REMEL

The nomination procedures are governed by the terms of reference of nomination
committee which are published on the Company's website and the website of the

Stock Exchange.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE ON SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix |0 to the Listing Rules.
Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the CG

Period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication between
the Board and the Shareholders. They provide an opportunity for Shareholders to
better understand the Group's operation, financial performance, business strategies
and outlook. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the nomination
committee, remuneration committee and audit committee or; in their absence, other
members of the respective committees are available to answer questions at
Shareholder meetings. The annual general meeting (“AGM") will be held on 30 May
2012.The notice of AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM. To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.asrcom.hk, where up-to-date information and updates on the
Company’s financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted. The Board, according to the Listing Rules, will conduct voting
at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the Company voting will be

announced on the Company's website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) to be called by the Board for the transaction of any

business specified in such requisition.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM
include a written notice of those proposals being submitted by Shareholders,
addressed to the Board at the registered office. The detailed procedures vary
according to whether the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special
resolution, or whether the proposal relates to the election of a person other than a
Director of the Company as a director. The relevant procedures are set out in the
Notice of AGM which accompanies the despatch of this Annual Report to
Shareholders and will be included with the notice to Shareholders of any future

AGM.
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Article 88 of the Company's articles of association provides that if a Shareholder
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting wishes to propose a person other
than a Director of the Company for election as a Director at the general meeting,
he/she/it shall deposit a written notice to that effect at the principle place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the Board. Such notice
should also be signed by the nominated candidate indicating his/her willingness to be
elected. In order to ensure that Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and
consider the information of the nominated candidate, such notice should be given to
the Company within seven days after the dispatch of the notice of annual general
meeting of the Company. Details of the Shareholders’ right to propose a person for
election as a Director and the related procedures are set out on the Company's

website at www.asr.com.hk.

Enquiries may be directly put to the Board by questions at an AGM or EGM.
Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward proposals at an AGM

or EGM may also be put to the Company Secretary by the same means.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of six Directors, including

three executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny (R¥EREE)

Director on 28 June 2011 and is the chairman of the Board, the chief executive

,aged 51, was appointed as our executive

officer of our Company and one of the Founders. He is responsible for overall
business strategy and development and management of our Group as a whole. Mr.
Yu has over 27 years of experience in the aviation industry. From 1983 to 1989, Mr.
Yu worked in various management positions with United Airlines. From 1989 to
1990, he worked as the Central Pacific Manager with Trans World Airlines. From
1990 to 2000, he worked as the General Manager to oversee the operations in
Greater China and the North Asia Region with Lauda Air, a member of the Austrian
Airlines Group. In February 2001, Mr. Yu joined AOE Freight as a management
employee and became its shareholder in March 2002. Mr. Yu has been awarded the
Sales Award of the Year 1986 by United Airlines. On 12 December 1996, Mr. Yu
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's degree in

Business Administration.

Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (Z&EHEL4E)

executive Director on 28 June 2011 and is one of the Founders. He is responsible

, aged 44, was appointed as our

for the development and management of our Group’s non-exclusive sales business.
Mr. Mak has over 20 years of experience in cargo revenue management, product
development and strategic planning. In June 1991, he commenced work with Federal
Express as an account executive, where he was subsequently promoted to Sales
Manager and was responsible for supervising the cargo and express business in
Hong Kong and Taiwan. In October 2000, Mr. Mak joined AOE Freight as a
management employee and became its shareholder in March 2002. On 6 December
1990, Mr. Mak graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of

Science degree, majoring in Chemistry.
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Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki (BER%£4E) , aged 46, was appointed as our executive
Director on 28 June 201 | and is one of the Founders. He is responsible for the
development and management of our Group’s GSA business. Mr. Law has over 25
years of experience in the air cargo business. From 1986 to 1995, Mr. Law served
Japan Airlines for airport passenger administration, UTL Service Limited (then GSA
of Trans World Airlines) as a sales executive for the cargo and passenger divisions,
and Lauda Air in its cargo department. He started his service with Lauda Air as a
cargo manager and was subsequently promoted to a regional cargo manager. In April
1995, Mr. Law joined Orient Air (HK) Limited, which was principally engaged in the
wholesale of air cargo space from GSA agreements, as a director. In 2007, Mr. Law

joined our Group responsible for the development of our GSA business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.Wei Jin Cai (887 5%E4) | aged 62, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on | July 201 1. Mr. Wei has over 43 years of experience in civil
aviation. From April 1969 to March 1970, Mr. Wei worked in the Chengdu branch of
the Civil Aviation Administration of China. In October 1970, Mr. Wei was promoted
to work in the headquarters of the Civil Aviation Administration of China. From
August 1985 to March 1993, Mr. Wei acted as the deputy party secretary of the
Party Committee of Institution of the Civil Aviation Administration of China. He was
appointed as the party secretary of Civil Aviation Management Institute of China in
March 1993 and was promoted as the president in October 2008. Mr. Wei retired
from the Civil Aviation Management Institute of China in August 2010. Mr. Wei is
currently an independent non-executive director of China Southern Airlines
Company Limited (stock code: 1055), a company which shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He is concurrently acting as an independent director of Shandong
Airlines Company Limited (stock code: 200152), a company which shares are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Wei graduated from the Party School of the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China majoring in economics and
management through distance learning in December 1994. He conducted an in-

depth study on the operation and management of civil aviation.
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Dr. Zhang Xianlin (FREME L) , aged 58, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on | October 2011. Dr. Zhang has over 33 years of
experience in the areas of accounting and management and in the aviation industry.
Dr. Zhang graduated from the Party School of the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China majoring in economics and management through
distance learning in December [997. He then obtained from Huazhong University of
Science and Technology a Master's Degree in Business Administration and a
Doctoral Degree in Management in December 1998 and December 2004
respectively. He is a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. During the period from March 1978 to December 1996, he
served in various positions including senior management positions in the Civil
Aviation Administration of China. Between December 1996 and April 2009, Dr.
Zhang had held various senior managerial positions for several Hong Kong and PRC
companies, including the chairman of the board of supervisors in Air Macau
Company Limited, the general manager in China National Aviation Company
Limited, a director in Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited and the chairman of the
board of supervisors in Air China Limited (stock code: 753) and the chairman of the
board of directors of HNA Group (Hong Kong) Co., Limited. Dr. Zhang had also
been a non-executive director of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (stock code: 293)
during the period from August 1997 to October 2006. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (stock code:

899), a company which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (H#EE L)

independent non-executive Director on | October 201 1. Dr.Tyen has over 34 years

, aged 56, was appointed as our

of experience in auditing, accounting, management and company secretarial practice.
He is currently an independent director of Entertainment Gaming Asia Inc. (formerly
known as Elixir Gaming Technologies, Inc.) (stock code: EGT), a company which
shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange and an independent non-
executive director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (stock code: 102) and Melco
International Development Limited (stock code: 200), both of which shares are

listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Tyen was a director of Show8 Cyber Media Limited (“Show8"), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong prior to its dissolution as a result of creditors’ voluntary
liquidation commenced on 20 January 2001. Show8 was dissolved in July 2003.
Before its liquidation, Show8 was an Internet content provider. Due to the
unfavourable economic condition at that time and the burst of the Internet bubble
in year 2000 and the significant decline in business activities in the Internet sector,
Show8 was unable to overcome its financial difficulty and was then put into
liquidation in January 2001. Mr. Tyen confirmed that he was not involved in the
dissolution of Show8 and is not aware of any liability as a result of the dissolution of
Show8. He is also not aware of any outstanding claim from the creditors of Show8
after the dissolution of the company. In the three years preceding the date of this
annual report, Dr. Tyen was also an independent non-executive director of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (stock code: 821) and Recruit Holdings Limited
(stock code: 550), both of which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Tyen obtained a Doctoral degree in Philosophy and a Master's degree in Business
Administration on |0 December 1998 and 30 October 1986 respectively, both from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of both the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and a member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is currently

a practicing certified public accountant in Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The senior management are responsible for the day-to-day management of the

Group's business.

Mr. Ritola, Jouni Juhani, aged 32, is a director of ASR Europe and the beneficial
owner of 40% shareholding in ASR Europe. Mr. Ritola joined our Group on |5
September 2010 and was responsible for overseeing our operations in Europe and
Asia. He has over 7 years of experience in project management and the logistics
industry. On 17 December 2007 he joined Project Expeditors Limited (formerly
known as Polar Logistics Hong Kong Limited), a project logistics company as a
shareholder and director, in which he was responsible for leading its logistics team
and managing its the business operations in Hong Kong, China, Korea and Japan. On
4 December 2009, Mr. Ritola became the sole shareholder of Project Expeditors
Limited and since then operated it as a sole owner. Mr. Ritola graduated from the
University of Jyvdskyld with a Master of Science in Economics and Business

Administration.

Mr. Wong Kin Yan, Michael (EZ{=%4%) | aged 50, is the general manager for
Group performance and services standard compliance. Mr. Wong joined our Group
on 5 July 2010.

Mr.Wong has over 31| years of experience in the airlines and cargo industries. Since
1981, Mr.Wong worked as a traffic officer for Thai Airways International Limited and
was responsible for daily operations tasks. He was then promoted to traffic
supervisor in 1987 and was responsible for overseeing the daily operations at the
airport office of Thai Airways International Limited. He was then promoted to senior
traffic supervisor who was responsible for handling administrative tasks in the
airport office such as staff rostering, training, annual leave approval, coordination/
liaison with various service providers and government authorities. Mr. Wong left Thai
Airways International Limited and joined Emirates Airlines in 1991, where he
worked as the senior station supervisor and was responsible for handling both
operational and administrative tasks in the airport office of Emirates Airlines. Mr.
Wong left Emirates Airlines and joined Scandinavian Airlines in 1992, where he
worked as the duty station manager and was responsible for handling both
operational and administrative tasks in the airport office of Scandinavian Airlines. At
the same time, Mr. Wong also acted as the deputy station manager at the airport
office of Scandinavian Airlines when the station manager was away from the station.

From September 1993 to January 2000, Mr. Wong worked initially as a duty airport
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services manager for Hong Kong International Airport Services Limited and was
promoted as the airport service manager in May 1994 who was responsible for the
provision of ramp and cargo services. He was then transferred to work in the
“Planning & Standards” division in 1999. From January 2000 to April 2001, Mr. Wong
worked as a terminal service manager for AHK Air Hong Kong Limited. From July
2001 to February 2003, he worked as a manager in respect of operations procedure
for Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation. From March 2003 to January 2007, Mr.
Wong worked as a service manager for KLM Royal Dutch Airlines. During his
employment with KLM Royal Dutch Airlines, he was seconded to its Beijing office for
about two years. In February 2007, Mr. Wong joined Hong Kong Dragon Airlines
Limited as a security manager. He was then internally transferred to Hong Kong
Airport Services Limited and worked as a passenger service manager with effect
from November 2008 and up to June 2010.

In November 1995, Mr. Wong completed the “Station Ground Handling
Management” training course undertaken by IATA which was intended for airline
station and ground handling managers. In September 2001, he completed the Joint
DMS program undertaken by the Hong Kong Management Association and Lingnan
University, thus obtaining a Diploma in Management Studies. Mr. Wong attended and
completed the “Safety Audit and Lead Auditor Course” undertaken by Aviation
Consulting & Training Pty Ltd. and the “Security Quality Control” course undertaken
by IATA in April 2007 and May 2007 respectively.

Ms. Ng Yee Ming, Canny (R#KBI/NH) | aged 37, is the director of finance and
administration. She has over 14 years of experience in the areas of accounting,
taxation, finance and auditing. Prior to joining our Group as an accounting supervisor
on 17 November 2000, Ms. Ng worked in a CPA firm from March 1998 to January
1999. From April 1999 to July 2000, Ms. Ng worked in various positions at DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Property Management Limited. From July 2000 to October
2000, Ms. Ng worked for New World TMT Limited (formerly known as New World
Infrastructure Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of New World Development
Company Limited (stock code: 17). Ms. Ng graduated from the University of
Technology, Sydney with a Bachelor of Business degree in October 1997. She was
admitted as a member of CPA Australia in December 1997 and advanced to the

status of Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia in July 2002.
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Mr. Fok Kam Man, Billy (B$83%E4) |, aged 46, is the general manager for GSA.
Mr. Fok has over 25 vears of experience in the aviation industry. Prior to joining our
Group on 2 February 2009, Mr. Fok had worked as the passenger traffic agent and
then a lead agent in the passenger traffic section of Japan Airlines from October
1987 to July 1993. From July 1993 to January 1996, Mr. Fok worked as a junior
dealer for Emperor Management Services (Overseas) Limited. From February 1996
to October 2008, Mr. Fok worked initially as a passenger services supervisor for
Menzies Macau Airport Services Limited and was promoted to the position of
senior duty manager. Mr. Fok graduated from the School of Continuing Studies, the
Macau University of Science and Technology with a degree of Bachelor of

International Tourism Management.

Mr. Lee Wai Man, Tom (Z{E3X5E4%) | aged 40, is the general manager for the air
freight and operations of our Group. Mr. Lee has over with |8 years of experience in
the logistics industry. Prior to joining our Group on 16 June 1997, he had worked for
different freight forwarding companies. After joining our Group, he has served
various positions including operations supervisor, assistant operations manager,
consolidation manager and assistant general manager. He was promoted to his
current position in 2008. Mr. Lee completed a Dangerous Goods Diploma which

was undertaken by IATA and Cathay Pacific in 2003.

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho, Lewis (EBR{AI%4) | aged 31, is head of corporate services
of our Group. Mr. Chou has over 9 years of experience in accounting and auditing.
Prior to joining our Group on 17 January 2011, Mr. Chou worked in an accounting
firm from September 2003 to January 2006. From January 2006 to December 2010,
Mr. Chou served in various positions at PricewaterhouseCoopers including associate,
senior associate and manager. Mr. Chou graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy in November 2003. He
completed the HKSI Foundation Programme Examination undertaken by the Hong
Kong Securities Institute in 2002. Mr. Chou is a member of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants. Mr. Chou has resigned from our Group since | April 2012,
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Ms. Feng Qian Qing, Connie (FfEMI/NE) | aged 43, is the manager for finance
and administration of our South China operations and our PRC internal compliance
officer. Ms. Feng has over |6 years of experience in the areas of accounting and
finance. Prior to joining our Group as an accounts officer on | November 2005, Ms.
Feng worked as an accounts officer for the Guangzhou branch office of a shipping
company from November 1994 to June 1997. From November 2000 to August
2005, she worked as the chief accounts officer for Guangzhou Chengtong
Investment Consultant Limited. After joining our Group in September 2005, she was
promoted as the assistant finance manager for our South China operations,
stationing at the Guangzhou branch of AOE Freight (Shenzhen). In October 2008,
she was further promoted as the manager for finance and administration of our
South China operations. Ms. Feng graduated from Guangzhou Institute of Technology
(formerly known as the Guangzhou Worker Amateur University) with a diploma in

accounting in July 2001,

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Hoo (BBZ %4 ) | aged 50, was appointed as the company secretary of
our Company on 10 November 2011 to serve our Company on a part-time basis.
Mr. Cheng obtained a bachelor of laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in
1987. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1990 and in England and
Wales in 1995. Mr. Cheng has over 21 years' experience in the practice of law. He is
a co-founder and partner of CWL Partners in association with Nixon Peabody LLP
and Hylands Law Firm where he practises corporate and commercial law. Currently,
he is not acting as a company secretary of any listed companies other than our

Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASR HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ASR Holdings Limited (the
“Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to |37,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 3| December 2011, and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEEEER

As at 31 December 201 |

#2011 12 A31 8

2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt THER TET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KR 5 7,457 4432
Available-for-sale financial assets AHESREE 7 7,207 7,257
Long-term deposits RBES 10 1,006 360
Deferred tax assets BREBIBEE 8 810 314
16,480 12,363
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables EE )L ee 9 71,600 71,463
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ENFKIE e REMEKRFKIE 10 10,923 9,049
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AR EBEFABGNEREE 7 1,027 1,042
Pledged deposits BEHEMAER || 21,022 7366
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY I 93,560 125917
198,132 214,837
Total assets REE 214,612 227,200
EQUITY B
Share capital EEEN 12 100 —
Reserves E ] I3 8,924 7,925
Retained earnings RE & F 13 103,905 107,922
112,929 ['15,847
Non-controlling interests RS 2,908 1,029
Total equity MR 115,837 116,876
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
mEBEEEEX
As at 3| December 201 |

R2011E12A31 R

2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
(g TERT FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Finance lease liabilities MEREAR |7 14 19
Deferred tax liabilities BEXERIBEE 8 448 14
462 133
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B HERNTE 14 60,556 68,628
Other payables and accruals HAit R B R ETER I5 17,029 6,645
Bank loans RITER 16 — 15916
Finance lease liabilities MEMREARE 17 6 5
Income tax payable S PR1STR 20,722 18,997
98,313 110,191
Total liabilities wneE 98,775 110,324
Total equity and liabilities HEZRERE 214,612 227,200
Net current assets RBEEFE 99,819 104,646
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBER 116,299 117,009

The notes on pages 55 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

The financial statements on pages 46 to |37 were approved for issue by the Board

of Directors on 27 March 2012 and were signed on its behalf.

Director

B

D

FHOEBTANME AL TR MBHRRNAE
KED °

FA6E137TAMF B RERDN201293A27R
MESERENR  THATRERS

irector

5=
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Balance Sheet
BEEBEX
As at 31 December 201 |

R20114612 831 H

2011
Note HK$°000
M & TERT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RETE R AR E 6 125,339
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T FRIE R H At MR IR 10 54,384
Total assets mEE 179,723
EQUITY B
Share capital B& 7R 100
Share premium 195 B I3 125,239
Retained earnings REBA 13 37,590
Total equity HmiEn 162,929
LIABILITIES &
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals Hit R HIERETER 15 16,794
Total liabilities wnem 16,794
Total equity and liabilities HEGZREE 179,723
Net current assets RBEEFE 37,590

The notes on pages 55 to 37 are an integral part of these financial statements.

These financial statements on pages 46 to |37 were approved for issue by the

Board of Directors on 27 March 2012 and were signed on its behalf.

ASR Holdings Limited 2071 Annual Report

Director

£

FH5E137ANME AL T BRRNAKE

7 e

FA6E137ANHM B REERN2012463H27H

HEFSRATE THUATRRES -

Director

=



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEXEKER
For the year ended 31 December 201 |

HBE2011F12 831 BILFE

2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt E TERT TET
Revenue Y gs 18 603,736 489,853
Cost of sales HERKAR 20 (418,158) (344,869)
Gross profit EM 185,578 144,984
Other gains, net Hin s @ 558 19 2,921 2511
Other income Hip A 19 288 349
Administrative expenses TR X 20 (71,048) (40,244)
Operating profit & A 117,739 107,600
Finance income BMEWA 23 300 179
Finance costs BEKAR 23 (148) (676)
Finance income/(costs), net MEWA (RA) F58 23 152 (497)
Profit before income tax B TS Bt AL A 117,891 107,103
Income tax expense PSR A X 24 (18,770) (13,897)
Profit for the year F N A 25 99,121 93,206
Other comprehensive income H kR s WA
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of AL ECREELAAEBE
available-for-sale financial assets CR) /H#Em (88) 16
Currency translation differences bEH =5 581 302
Total comprehensive income for the year FAFEBAERE 99,614 93,624
Profit attributable to: ATBIBEGEER -
— Equity holders of the Company —ARAERFEA 97,305 92,150
— Non-controlling interests — RS 1,816 1,056
99,121 93,206
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
ME2HEWAER

For the year ended 31 December 201 |

HE2011F12A31 BIEFE

2011 2010
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
ik TER TET
Total comprehensive income attributable to: ATEBERIGGE AL :
— Equity holders of the Company —AREERFEA 97,798 92,568
— Non-controlling interests —FERE S 1,816 1,056
99,614 93,624
Earnings per share for profit attributable to ARAERRA AEERME
equity holders of the Company (HK cents) &N G&l)
— Basic and diluted —EALEE 26 32.44 30.72

The notes on pages 55 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FE5ZR1TENM T RZEFE M BHRERNA

statements. BEb D e
2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BT TER FET
Dividends % 2. 27 127,736 32,786
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year anded 3| December 201 |

HZE2011F12 A 31 BILEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARARBERARE

Available-

for-sale
financial
assets
Statutory revaluation Non-
and legal  reserve controlling
Share  Capital Exchange reserves FIfEHE Retained interests Total
apital  reserve reserves AER SMEE  Subtotal  earnings Total  FER  equity
RE BARE EXRE SERE ENRE O RERN 4% BE 48R
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén TEx TEx TRz TFER TEx TEx TFER TEx TEn

Balance at | January 2011 R2011E1 71 RE8 = 6,460 1,045 317 103 7925 107922 115847 1,029 116876
Comprehensive income HRUA
Profit for the year ERET = = = = = — 971305 97,305 1816 99,121
Other comprehensive income HGERA
Currency translation differences EiER - - 58 - = 581 - 58 - 58
Released upon disposal of available- WA IHE

forsale financial assets ERAERED - - - - 19 19 - 19 - 19
Revaluation of available-for-sale A E

financial assets SHEEER - - - - (88) (88) - (68) - (88)
Total comprehensive income R ALE = = 581 = (69) 512 97305 97817 1816 99,633
Transactions with owners HERANRE
Capital contribution i - | - - - | - | - I
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBLR = (200) — — — (200) — (200) 63 (137)
Transfer to statutory reserve EREY Y- = = = 786 = 786 (786) — — —
Dividends RE - - - - - — (100,536) (100536) — (100,536)
Allotment of shares ARRLA 100 (100) - - - - - - - -
Total transactions with owners BREANRSHEE 00 (299) - 786 - 587 (101,322) (100,735) 63 (100672)
Balance at 31 December 201 | R2011E12A31 BER 100 6,161 1,626 [,103 Rz} 9,024 103905 112929 2908 15837
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREHR

For the year anded 3| December 201 |

HZE2011 512 A31 BILEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KRFRERR AR

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets
Statutory revaluation Non-
and legal  reserve controlling
Share  Capital  Exchange reserves AIfEHIE Retained interests Total
apitll  reserve  reserves  AEN SHEE  Subtotel  eamings  Totl  FEER  equity
RE ExffR EXRE ARG ERRRE 0 REEM g% B @R
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HKFO00 HK$O000 HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
Tér T TEn TEr TR TEn T TER  TEn  TEn
Balance at | January 2010 R2010% 1 A1 B &R = 5751 743 49 (13) 6530 48666  551% 935 56131
Comprehensive income HRUA
Profit for the year FRE - - - - - — 9050 900 1056 93206
Other comprehensive income EEERA
Currency translation differences EXZS — - 30 - = 30 = 302 = 302
Revaluation of available-for-sale nELE
financial assets AEEf - - - - 11 116 - 16 - 16
Total comprehensive income FRNALE - - 302 - 116 418 92150 92568 1056 93624
Transactions with owners HERANRE
Capital contribution iE — 709 - - = 709 = 709 = 709
Capital injection from FERER
non-controlling interests i = — — = = = = = 400 400
Acquisition of addtional AERRESNE
interests in a subsidiary REBAR
from non-controlling interests EfhiEs = = = = = = = —  (1202)  (1202)
Transfer to statutory reserve BREZETRE = = = 268 — 268 (268) — — —
Dividends RE — - - - - —  (32626) (32626)  (I60) (32.786)
Total transactions with owners HEFANRHER — 709 = 268 = 977 (32894) (1917)  (%2) (328M9)
Balance at 31 December 2010 R10512 531 B&H — 640 106 317 03 7905 10792 115847 1009 116876
The notes on pages 55 to |37 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FE55ZR13TENM T RZERE M B HRERNA

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERETRER

For the year ended 3| December 201 |

HZE2011F12 31 BILEE

2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 TERT TET
Operating activities: REED
Cash generated from operations KETBMERE 28(a) 103,851 111,388
Income tax paid ERATEH (17,207) (3,736)
Net cash generated from operating activities REFHMERSFR 86,644 107,652
Investing activities: REED :
Dividend received B 194 102
Interest received RSN 300 179
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BEREE (5,095) (4,440)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BER
plant and equipment R PTIFRIE 28(b) 600 297
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets EEUHLESRERE (1,560) (6,154)
Proceeds from disposal of available- HERHLESRMEE
for-sale financial assets #) A5 308 1,525 —
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries & KB A R B FT{S SRIE 28(d) 414 —
Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary W BB BT /B 1 ) B L 4 2 — (1,202
Net cash used in investing activities REEZSMARSFE (3,622) (11218)

BEERARAT 2011 F#
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 201 |

HZE2011F12 831 BILEE

2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
PiEE THER TET
Financing activities: MEEE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITRERAERIE — 59,547
Repayments of bank borrowings ERFTER (15,916) (50,834)
Repayments of obligations under finance lease EERMEEHERE 4) (233)
Capital contribution EE [ 709
Capital injections by non-controlling interests FERERTE — 400
Interest paid =AREIE) (148) (676)
Dividends paid BEREE (100,536) (59,417)
Net cash used in financing activities MEFREMARSFE (116,603) (50,504)
(Decrease)/increase in cash REeRBREEEY
and cash equivalents (H4) /#m (33,581) 45,930
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRER 125917 79,982
beginning of the year ReEEYD
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents RekBReEBWEN KR 1,224 5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREERREEFEY Il 93,560 125917

The notes on pages 55 to 37 are an integral part of these consolidated financial E552 17BN T RZERE M B HRENA

statements. BE D e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

ASR Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 28 June 2011 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is 3rd Floor
Queensgate House, |13 South Church Street, PO. Box 10240, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1002, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of air freight service in

the wholesale market.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation, which was completed on 3 December
2011 (the "Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding company of
the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Prior to the completion of the
Reorganisation, the business of the Group was carried out by companies now
comprising the Group collectively controlled by Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak
Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki, (together, the “"Controlling
Shareholders”), who have been the ultimate beneficiary owners of the Group

before and after the completion of the Reorganisation.

On 30 December 201 |, the Company issued a prospectus (the “Prospectus”)
and launched a public offering of 100,000,000 shares offered at an offer price
of HK$0.93 per share (the “"Offer Price”) and the capitalisation of 290,000,000
shares (“Capitalisation Issue”). The Company's shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
|6 January 2012.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (HK$) unless

otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 3R 3% B9 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these

consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

22

Basis of presentation

The Reorganisation was accounted for as a reorganisation of business
under common control using the principle of merger accounting as
presented in Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combination” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™). Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared as if the group
structure had been in existence as at all dates during the years

presented.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRS). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7 3R 3% MY &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2 IEEHHEHSE (B
2.2 Basis of preparation (Cont'd) 22, RPUEE (&)

(i) Revisions and amendments to existing Standards and interpretation (i) R20MELEYELEEXEY
effective in 201 | but have no significant impacts or are not relevant to ERELXREERNREES
the Group RZBHETRETE
« HKAS 24 (Revised) “Related party disclosures” o FREHEAE24R (K

fE=]) TRAR 7y B8 ]

*  Amendment to HKAS 32 “Classification of rights issues” o FAREHEAFEIZRH
CHIFwEE

*  Amendment to HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Prepayments of a minimum o FHE (ERMBmERE
funding requirement” Z88) -REZ145H

EF [ANREEEEX]

+  HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 “Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity o HH(ERMBHRERE
instruments” FEE) -R2BE19%M
ERIARHEERAE]

*  Third improvements to HKFRSs (2010) published in May 2010 o  EHEGHMAEN20105
by HKICPA SREMN BRI KRS

%8 (20109F) = RBuE

HKAS | “Presentation of financial statements” o FHBEIEDET
W B ®RES R

*  HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and separate financial o FEGIEAE27
statements” 5 (KB (&8
SECNAEE T

*  HKAS 34 “Interim financial reporting” o EBGHEAEM
5 [ BB IR ]

»  HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business combinations” o EFEUBHRTER
U ACSHIEES
%4 6t

0 HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” o EEBUBHREER
FIRIEMTA :
RE

o HK(FRIC)-Int I3 “Customer loyalty programmes” o FE(BBEHBR

ERBZEE) -
EXEARTARSS
BEETE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 3R 3% B9 5

2

58

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2

2.2 Basis of preparation (Contd)

(ii)

New Standards, amendments to existing Standards and interpretation

TEEH

HEBE (8)

2.2, REEE (B)

(ii)

have been issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning

| January 201 | and have not been early adopted by the Group

FEBYERERATIEMR

ArER2011F 15 10 B % 89

BB B 1 K L R A #7 AT 22 A
RABEARZBHET

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on

or after

N WN=D

KBS

NEEHEEXR

Amendments toHKAS | (Revised)
BERGTENE 1RO (KEFT)

Amendment to HKAS 12
BB ERE125MERT

HKAS 19 (2011)
BB SR 195 (20114F)

HKAS 27 (2011)
ezt R E275% (20114F)

HKAS 28 (201 1)
BB SR 285 (20114)

Amendments to HKAS 32

BRI ENE2RANIER]

Amendments to HKFRS 7

BRMBREEIFETHRNER]

Amendments to HKFRS 7

BRMBRERRETROER]

ASR Holdings Limited 2071 Annual Report

Presentation of financial statements

B @RI

Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets

BB - REHEEE

Employee benefits

BB ®EH

Separate financial statements

L AVA D B

Investments in associates and joint ventures

REERRIRAELENERE

Financial instruments: Presentation —

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
TRIA: 2)-AHeMEERERMAR

Financial instruments: Disclosures —

Transfers of financial assets
ERIA BRE-BEeREE

Financial instruments: Disclosures —

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

eRIE RE-HA#HemEERSEAR

| July 2012
20125 7R18

| January 2012
2012%1R18

| January 2013
2013%F1A18

| January 2013
2013F1A18

| January 2013
2013F1H1H

| January 2014

20141 A18

| July 2011

20115 7H18

| January 2013
2013F1H1H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2
2.2 Basis of preparation (Contd)

(ii)

New Standards, amendments to existing Standards and interpretation

have been issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning

| January 2011 and have not been early adopted by the Group

(Cont'd)

BA RS R MY aE

ZEHRERME (B)
22, RPUEE (&)

(i) FEBYEEZHEHTZEH
HER2011E 1A 1HBEE
MBEEHREMBITER
REBERRZBIET (B)

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after
RUTRER
At 3ok
NEEHBEXN

Amendments to HKFRS 7

and HKFRS 9

BREMGIMERIETR R
KB

-

BRMBRE

HKFRS 9

BN MEERFR

HKFRS 10

BEMBREEAF10%

HKFRS 1|
BREMB]MEE

HKFRS 12
BEMBRE

HKFRS 13

BRI BREEAF13H

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

B (HRAERS
2 BE205

ZE®)-

BIFE115%

B 125

B3

9SRMIER]

Mandatory effective date and transaction disclosures

B EME BRI RE

Financial instruments
PRIA

Consolidated financial statements

HRRBRE

Joint arrangements
Ba R

Disclosure of interests in other entities

REMERNERKE

Fair value measurements

Z\\}LM 1Eu+i

Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine

BARERS A ER R RIBER R

The Group is assessing the impact of these standards, amendments

and interpretation. The Group will apply these standards,

amendments and interpretation when they are effective in the

respective annual periods.

| January 2015

2015 1H18

| January 2015
2015F1H1H

| January 2013
2013 1H1H

| January 2013
2013 1H1H

| January 2013
2013F1H1H

| January 2013
2013 1H1H

| January 2013
2013 1H1H

REBREFEZETED £

SRRBNYE REABR
ERNEBFESRERZS
B BRI RRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 3R 3% B9 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.3 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of

the Company and all its subsidiaries as at 3| December.

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The
Group also assesses existence of control where it does not have
more than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern the
financial and operating policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-
facto control may arise from circumstances such as enhanced

minority rights or contractual terms between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

ASR Holdings Limited 2071 Annual Report

2 FEEHBERME(B)
2.3 #EKA
BEMBREROBEARAREMA
WEBARIR12A31BHMBRE

(i)

& 2 &

MEBAREARBEERELRH
MBEREERRAOME L8
(BREEHRENEE)  —KH
THRATEREEMNRE - &
TEASERG AR S — 68
B - B ATAI /TR 3R] A B
ERERNGFEREBTEN
TER - MASBEHEE IR
BO%MIRENE - BERBERRE
PRIEGIEM A SRR E
EUE - AMehesFa
T - BIRIEHIEA R
LEREEN SR RENE K

FEREBRTEL -

MEAREEHEEREAL
BzBHEZEEAAR £
IR E 2 BERIESES A
E\EO

SERNDERORS - BERR
RHNAERF G - HRER
BmeE - REABRTTHE
e MEARMEIBERER
FERELRE - UHERER
REPTRBBE - -



2

Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.3 Consolidation (Cont'd)
Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(i)

()

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of account for
business combinations except for the business combination
under common control or the Reorganisation as described in
note 29 which are accounted for using the principles of
merger accounting. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts of

acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair

value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 3R 3% B9 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.3 Consolidation (Contd)
Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(i)

()

(b)

Business combinations (Cont'd)

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the

difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also

recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.3 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(i)

(i

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration
arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee's

net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 3R 3% B9 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The

chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the Executive Directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented in HKS$, which is

the Company's functional and the Group'’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income within 'other

(losses)/gains, net'.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying

amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(ii)

(ii)

Transactions and balances (Cont'd)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale, are included in other

comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

*  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

*  income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive

income are translated at average exchange rates; and

* all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising

are recognised in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 3R 3% B9 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

()

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in
the Group's ownership interest in associates or jointly controlled
entities that do not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control) the proportionate share of the accumulated

exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7 3R 3% MY &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2 IEEHHEHSE (B
26 ¥ BERRE

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the years in which they

are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The annual

rates are as follows:
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Leasehold improvements 25% MEEE 25%
Furniture and fixtures 20% BMREE 20%
Office equipment 20% YN 20%
Computer equipment 20% B E 20%
Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other (losses)/gains,

net’, in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

BENRERIERFIRSEE
BERN - LEEEHE -

& EREESN G AREE
B AZEENREENRHEHEE
Ha e e -

EREEN NG RERHBEAE
FEEEEMENEZRET ' URE
2EMEREM (BE) /Kas
EZA | I8 NHER ©

%\D % H

BMFERERAT 2011 F#

67



68

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 3R 3% B9 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets and investment in a subsidiary

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are

reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.8 Financial assets
2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purposes for

which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines

the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if expected to be

settled within |2 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-

current.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.8 Financial assets (Contd)
2.8.1 Classification (Cont'd)

(i)

(ii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than |2 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, amounts due from shareholders, non-
controlling interests and related companies, pledge deposits
and, cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance

sheet,

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose of the investment

within 12 months of the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 3R 3% B9 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.8 Financial assets (Contd)

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way of purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within ‘other
(losses)/gains, net’, in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right

to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2 IEEHHEHSE (B
2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd) 28 SREE (&)

282BARITE (&)
EoBEATHEENEFRH
EXHRFER R

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (Cont'd)
When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,

the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in available-for-

sale financial assets revaluation reserve are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as ‘other (losses)/

gains, net’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of ‘other (losses)/gains, net'.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of

‘other income’ when the Group’s right to receive payments is
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group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a

group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are

result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or

events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of

D

the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be (

>5\L

reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 3R 3% B9 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.8 Financial assets (Contd)
2.8.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

()  Assets carried at amortised cost (Contd)

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is

objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

*  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

* A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

*  The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise

consider;

* It becomes probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

*  The disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.8 Financial assets (Contd)

2.8.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont'd)

*  Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition of
those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the

portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment status of

borrowers in the portfolio;

(i) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of

impairment exists.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.8 Financial assets (Contd)

2.8.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont'd)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis

of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.8 Financial assets (Contd)

2.8.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidenced that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss on equity

instruments are not reversed through profit or loss.

2.9 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services

performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and

other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal

operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current

assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less provision for impairment.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10

2.1

2.12

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, net of bank overdrafts and pledged
deposits. Bank overdrafts are shown within current liabilities in the

balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are

shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If

not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.13

2.14

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the

other financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs.To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the

period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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78

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.15 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

() Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)

(ii)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is

realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.15 Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)
(iii)  Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities

where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.16 Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in a number of defined contribution plans,
the assets of which are generally held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the relevant group companies. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further contribution if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior
periods. The Group has no further payment obligations once the

contributions have been paid.

The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future

payments is available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2 IEEHHEHSE (B

2.16 Employee benefits (Cont'd) 2.16 EEEA (&)

(i) Profit-sharing and bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration the
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a

constructive obligation.

(iii)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet

date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not

recognised until the time of leave.

2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise
lease termination penalties and employee termination payments.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to

passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.18 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable from provision of services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown, net of returns, rebates and discounts

and is recognised as follows:

(a) Air freight service fee income
Air freight service fee income is recognised when the air freight
services are provided, the timing of which usually coincides with the
departure date. This service fee income will be either recognised at
gross or net depending on the arrangement with airlines, integrated

carriers and freight forwarders.

(b) Rental income
Rental income under operating lease is recognised on a straight-line

basis over the lease periods.

(c) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan
and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest

rate.

(d) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is

established.

ASR Holdings Limited 2071 Annual Report

2

TESHBEME (&)

2.18 WA
S EAESEEAREHBEFR
M%%EEWE%%EWKEW/
REE WEENRES  BNE
ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂ%mmT

(a) ZERBEEUA
TERBBUARREREER
BRER  BRASERATELD
BRE—N - ZRBEBUAF
%EiﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁE§?  BURR

MERF  RAEEREAREE
R@Amﬁﬁ°

(b) HELKA
AEWADZRESERHAES
AAR

(c) FIEKA
MERAKBERF SERE
FILLPIEERR - EEHRE
WHBELRRER  AEEE
HEAERZEEATKESE
NRITANRERHNRIERN
A RRRERE - VEES
FRFAELHERRFEWA -

BEREERRERFIENFE
WARRRERAR#R -

(d) ﬁEWA
B B R A R 4
J%ﬁm°



Notes to the Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.19

2.20

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessors are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessors) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis

over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of
property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease's commencement at the lower of the
fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum

lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
current or non-current liabilities. The interest element of the finance cost
is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the

asset and the lease term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to shareholders and to the then shareholders of
the entities now comprising the Group is recognised as a liability in the
Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are

approved by the then shareholders.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, and cash flow interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Directors.
The Directors provide principles for overall risk management, as well as

policies covering specific areas.

(a)  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“RMB") and United States dollar ("US$"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,

recognised assets and liabilities.

During the year, the Group had not hedged its foreign
exchange risk because the exposure, after netting off the
assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk, is not

very significant.

As at 31 December 2011, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against the HK$ with all other variables held constant,
profit before income tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$67,000 (2010: HK$606,000) lower/higher
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of RMB-denominated trade and other receivables,

cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Contd)
(a) Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially

independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's exposures to changes in interest rates are mainly
attributable to the bank loans and overdrafts. Borrowings
obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash flow

interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 201, there were no bank loans or

overdrafts.

As at 31 December 2010, if the interest rates on bank loans
and overdrafts had been 100 basis-points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would be HK$133,000 lower/higher, mainly as a result of

higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Contd)
(b)  Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from deposits and financial instruments
placed with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and
committed transactions. The Group has no significant concentration

of credit risk.

For banks and financial institutions, only independent parties with

high credit rating are accepted.

Air freight services are mainly settled with bank facilities. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and the Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The existing
debtors have no significant defaults in the past. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the Directors are of the
opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has

been made.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from shareholders, non-controlling
interests and related companies, deposits and financial instruments
placed with banks and financial institutions represent the Group's

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Management makes periodic assessments on the recoverability of
those receivables and deposits, and is of the opinion that adequate

provision for receivables with significant credit risk has been made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Contd)

(<)

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents, which is generated from the operating
cash flow and adequate banking facilities. As at 3| December 201 I,
trade and other payables had contractual maturity within twelve
months from the balance sheet date. Obligations under a finance

lease due after 12 months are not significant.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the

impact of discounting is not significant.

3

BA RS R MY aE

BEEBRER (£)
3.1 MEBEBREE ()
(c) RBELEE

AEEZBEREHOREL
EHERENRERREEE
WA R B S IRITRE B R
BEEER - N20115F128
318 - B REMENKIEDN
EHIBATEESERREH T
—EAR - T ZEAEEIEN
BEREEALTEKX -

TRBNBREHEEEERH
BB AR SHR AR ERHE
HHBHNERABENDN o
TREBNEBABOIME
ReRng - ANMANTEY
AEX TZEARIHRNE
BERERE &R o

At 3| December 201 |
R20l1E12831A8

Less than Between Between
| year | to2years 2tob years Total
K3 1225 2E55 At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER THER
Trade payables BHRENTE 60,556 — — 60,556

Other payables H fth & 5B

and accruals REFER 16,224 — — 16,224
Finance lease liabilities MEHERE 8 16 — 24
76,788 16 — 76,804
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(c) Liquidity risk (Contd)

3 M¥ERER(E)

3.1

MERREER (&)
(c) REBEZEE (&)

At 3| December 2010
R 2010 12 A31 H

Less than Between Between
| year [ to2years 2to5 years Total
K3 | 225 2ES55F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TERT
Trade payables S REMNTE 68,628 — — 68,628
Other payables H fth & 5B
and accruals LR &R 6,018 — — 6,018
Bank loans RITEK 16,073 — — 16,073
Finance lease liabilities MEMERE 8 8 16 32
90,727 8 6 90,751
3.2 Fair value estimation 3.2 DAEEME
The carrying value less impairment provision of receivables and payables O ol (B 7 4 72 1) R WA R IE % B £
are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial IEEEE{ETHE REHRXLEEME
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future o fERER $E'J§E$E ENTRE
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available TETH«‘/\$E EmEEUemIAE
to the Group for similar financial instruments. ST RERARGNRERE
fEatFd -

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by

valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level ).

*  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)

or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

* Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B A ¥R 3R M 5 E
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 MKEBER (&)
3.2 Fair value estimation (Contd) AREEMET (B
Level | Level 2 Total
—& ot 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TR TR
As at 31 December 201 | R2011E 128 31H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets A& & g & E
— Investment funds, unlisted —FLETEREES — 6,374 6,374
— Corporate bond, listed —FmtERES 833 — 833
Financial assets at fair value BAnBEGFARR
through profit or loss HEmEE
— Equity linked note BREEHNDEE = 1,027 1,027
Total BT 833 7,401 8,234
As at 31 December 2010 M2010512A31H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ FJft I E S REE
— Investment funds, unlisted —FLMEEES = 6,461 6,461
— Corporate bond, listed — T RERS 796 — 796
Financial assets at fair value BAnBEFARR
through profit or loss MNEMEE
— Equity linked note BREHHRIE — 1,042 1,042
Total st 796 7,503 8,299
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 MEEBRER (&)
3.3 Capital risk management 33 EXEBER
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the AEENE2ERBEREERER
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide SERRELYE  NARRREMHR
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to WEAHM RSB AR -
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. R ERFRENEREBAREE
TR
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust RERIRHBRERNERE  AEET
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to REABRRNTRENRE - MK
shareholders, or sell assets to reduce debt. REBMER  HHEBENRD
E#%
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total liabilities-to-total AEERREGEHUEEENLXRE
assets ratio. The total liabilities-to-total assets ratio as at 31 December ? BN o 120105 K 2011412431
2011 and 2010 were as follows: BEBHAEENLENT
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FTET
Total liabilities BaffE 98,775 110,324
Total assets REE 214,612 227,200
Ratio = 46% 49%
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONSS 4 EREHMETFRER

The preparation of financial statements often requires the use of judgment to
select specific accounting methods and policies from several acceptable

alternatives.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(Cont'd)

(@)

(b)

(©)

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. Provisions are applied
to receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectable. The identification of impairment of
receivables requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment
of receivable is recognised in the year in which such estimates have been

changed.

Income taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated taxes based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current income tax and deferred

income tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Fair values of available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

For the fair value of financial assets not traded in an active market, the
Group uses the quoted prices provided by counterparties to estimate
the fair values. The methodology, models and assumptions used in valuing

these financial assets require judgement.

4

EX

(a)

(b)

(c)

BA RS R MY aE

Bt RBR (8)

B W B R E
AEBERYEUFRTREDEE
HORT(d - B R R OR 1 R E B
o WELESHIBERNE BT
AR BRI E - Bl REIGK
BEL B - BRI EERBERER
fEHHE R - WRBEBAR
BEAER  ARSEZERRTE
FEWF R IREE - SRR
EEREN A2 FERER -

EEL
RETHEHRBEREAELERH
B ERRXBBRTEZERS
R EAR - BEBHRERER
RIEBRE AEERBERLFR
MBI B AfEE - BRBEH
BREE - MR EENRERS
BEREFRNIARTE %28
EYERLBEHRNERMEH
FBERET BB o

THEESHEERRAABES
AEHENEREENDAEE
REEEERTHSEENEMEE
MAREBENS  AKREERYF
TRENFRESE RAEE - fha
RETBEEMERNT A B/
R AR R B AR I
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Bt 7 3R 3% B9 5
5  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 5 Y% BELRRE-F£H
Leasehold Furniture
improve- and Office Computer Motor
ments fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HEXE GALEE HORE EKERE HE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T T TET TET TET
At | January 2010 201061418
Cost A 69 254 377 1,088 1,170 3,580
Accumulated depreciation 2FHE (489) (139) (299) (752) (686) (2,365)
Net book amount EEFE 202 15 78 336 484 1215
Year ended 3| BHE 20104
December 2010 12831 BEEE
Opening net book amount ~ EFIERAFE 202 15 78 336 484 1215
Additions B 23| 104 185 214 3,706 4440
Disposals (note 28(b)) HE (M 28(0)) — — — — (260) (260)
Exchange difference =5 — — 2 2 3 7
Depreciation e (102) (45) (52) (162) (609) (970)
Closing net book amount FRERHHE 331 174 213 390 3324 4432
At 31 December 2010 ®2010F 12 A31H
Cost A 922 358 565 1,307 440 7392
Accumulated depreciation 2:HE (591) (184) (352) (917) (916) (2.960)
Net book amount EEEE 33| |74 213 390 3324 4432
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B 5 SR AR Y
5  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP (Contd) 5 9% BERRE-LAKE (&)
Leasehold Furniture
improve- and Office ~ Computer Motor
ments fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total

HEXE BARKE HORE EKEK RE At
HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Year ended 3| BZ2011E

December 201 2R3N ALEE
Opening net book amount FENREFE 331 174 213 390 3,324 4,432
Additions WE 1,268 254 399 626 2,548 5,095
Disposals (note 28(b)) HE (M 28(0)) — — — — (506) (506)
Exchange difference R — - 5 (1) 2 6
Depreciation & (322) (79) (1) (195) (863) (1,570)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 1,277 349 506 820 4,505 7,457
At 31 December 201 | R2011 5128310
Cost A 2,190 612 973 1926 6013 11,714
Accumulated depreciation Z5ME (913) (263) (467) (1,106) (1,508) (4,257)
Net book amount REFE 1277 349 506 820 4,505 7457
All depreciation expenses during the year have been charged in administrative FAMFTERX B RITHARX ©
expenses.
The Group leases various motor vehicles and office equipment under non- AEERBEIIRHEREHNERZEE
cancellable finance lease agreements. The lease terms are between two and SHAERZERNEE - HEFHN
five years. F_ERF o
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B 7% 3R 7 MY &

5  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP (Contd) 5 ¥M¥E BERRE-F£E (&)
Motor vehicles and office equipment include the following amounts where the AERPAREEEAAEERRER
Group is a lessee under finance leases: ERMEARNNATEH -

2011 2010

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT TET

Cost — capitalised finance leases KA—BARLRERS 25 25

Accumulated depreciation Rt E (4) (1

Net book amount AREHE 21 24
6  INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY 6 RHBRARE-AQF

2011 2010

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT TET

Unlisted investment, at cost FEMERE (REKA) 125,339 —
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BA RS R MY aE

BREENREER

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY (Contd) 6 RNHWBARRE-XQXF (B
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (a) MBRARFEMT :
Particulars
of registered
Principal capitalfissued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations HHMER/B Interest held
& ik A B 4t B ITERBRERDY BITRAHE BEER
2011 2010
Directly held:
EERR:
ASR Champion Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI”)  Investment holding US| 100% =
RERAHS REERK 1%
(I RBRLEE])
Indirectly held:
HEEA
ASR Limited (formerly known ~ Hong Kong Investment holding HK$2,000,000 100% 100%
as "ASR Holdings Limited”) &8 REZK 2,000,000 7T
(178 [HFZR
ARRA])
AQE Freight (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution HK$3,000,000 100% 100%
BrEERRAT B provider in Hong Kong 3,000,000 7T
BEEENRHER
ASR Logistics Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
BENRERAT BE provider in Hong Kong 1,000,000 T
ERZENRMURER
ASR Infrastructure Limited Hong Kong Inactive HK$10,000 100% =
i EREX 10,000 &7
ASR Europe Logistics Limited ~ Hong Kong Alir freight solution HK$1,000,000 60% 60%
Bh provider in Hong Kong 1,000,000 T
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Bt 7 3R 3% B9 5

6 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY (Cont'd) 6 RWBARRE-ALQT (&)
(a) Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd) (a) MEBARFEDT @ (&)
Particulars

of registered

Principal capital/issued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations ZMER/B Interest held
f# ik B 4t B IRXBRERBY BITRAHE BEER
2011 2010
ASR Worldwide Logistics Hong Kong Alir freight solution HK$1,000,000 60% 60%
Limited BE provider in Hong Kong 1,000,000 57T
BREENREER
ASRCO Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
wEMIRERAR BE provider in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
BREENREER
Star Pac Logistics Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Alir freight solution RM2 100% 100%
SRAED provider in Hong Kong BT
BEEENRIEER
Star Pacific Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
AFFERMRBRAF 0 provider in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
BEEENRHER
Starlite Express Hong Kong Investment holding HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
International Limited B8 RERK 1,000,000 7T
ERERBERRAT
AOE Freight (Shenzhen) People's Republic Air freight solution RMBe,000,000 100% 100%
Limited (note) of China (“PRC") provider in the PRC AR 6,000,000 7T
BFERSERE (R PEARANE PEEESREER
ARRA (i) (T J)
Pacific Empire International People's Republic Air freight solution RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
Limited (Shenzhen) (note) of China (“PRC") provider in the PRC AR 5,000,000 7T
BREREERE (RY)  HEARKANE PEEES KRR
ARRE (i) (T e ])
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BF 7 3R 3% MY &

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY (Contd)

(@)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

6 RHKBLARNKRE-ARQTF(E)
(a) MIBRARFEEMT :

Particulars

of registered

(8)

Principal capitalfissued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations HHMER/B Interest held
& ik A B 4t B ITERBRERDY BITRAHE BEER
2011 2010
Bluestream Aviation Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution HKS 100% 100%
BE provider in Hong Kong 18T
BREENREER
OA Cargo Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
Bk provider in Hong Kong 1,000,000 T
BREENRIEER
OA Cargo (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution HK$10,000 100% 100%
Bh provider in Hong Kong 10,000 &7
BEEENRIEER
Pacific Empire (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution HK$10,000 100% 100%
BE provider in Hong Kong 10,000 & 7T
BEEENRHER
Pacific Empire Cargo Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution HK$10 100% 100%
Bh provider in Hong Kong 1087
BRZENRHRRER
Pacific Empire Macau Alr freight solution MOP100,000 100% 100%
International Limited R provider in Macau 100,000 2F9 7
APEFEERERAT BHAZENREER
Star Cargo (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan Air freight solution NTD5,000,000 100% 100%
BEXTEERMA =) provider in Taiwan 4% 5,000,000 7
BRARA] RREENRMER
Star Cargo (Thailand) Limited  Thailand Inactive BAHT3,000,000 100% 100%
R TEex 3,000,000 Fk
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6 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY (Cont'd) 6 RMBARRE-XAT (B
(a) Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd) (a) MEBARFEDT : (&
Particulars

of registered

Principal capital/issued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations ZMER/B Interest held
f# ik B 4t B IRXBRERBY BITRAHE BEER
2011 2010
Star Cargo Japan Limited Japan Alir freight solution JPY350,000 100% 100%
Star Cargo 4\ &4t AR provider in Japan 350,000 A
AAZENRHER
Precise China British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$2 100% 100%
Investments Limited (“BVI") REER 2%
RERAHS
((RERZES])
Pacific Empire British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$2 100% 100%
International Limited (‘BVI") REER 2%
RERUEES
((RBRREE])
Note: R
The subsidiaries are limited liability company incorporated in PRC. MBARATRIMRINERAEA
] o
7  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - GROUP 7 HMEREE-AEEH
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Non-current assets FRBDEE
Available-for-sale financial assets (note (a)) At EemEE (HiX@) 7,207 7,257
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFABRN
profit or loss (note (b)) EREE (ME(b) 1,027 1,042
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OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - GROUP (Contd)

Notes:

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets

BA RS R MY aE

HitsMEE -4+ 58 (8)

PEE

(a) AHRHESMEE

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
At | January W1A1HE 7,257 987
Additions NE 1,560 6,154
Redemptions f& [ (1,522) —
Net (losses)/gains transfer to equity BREERN (BB) WEFHE (88) 16
At 31 December ®12A31H 7,207 7,257
Available-for-sale financial assets include the following: Y ESRHEERIENTHER
2011 2010
HK$000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Unlisted securities FELTES
— Investment fund —-REES 6,374 6,461
Listed securities TR
— Corporate bond —hEEH 833 796
7,207 7,257
Market value of listed securities EmESsmE 833 796

Available-for-sale financial assets were denominated in the following currencies:

ARHESHEENTIIERIIE

2011 2010

HK$000 HK$'000

TER FET

Hong Kong dollar BT 3,075 3,060
United States dollar ETT 4,132 4,197
7,207 7,257
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7

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - GROUP (Contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

~

HtteMEE-4A58 (8
GERNC)

(b) BRAARBEFABBEHNEREE

2011 2010
HK$000 HK$'000
TER FET
At | January wn1A1H 1,042 3,845
Disposals HE — (3,015)
Net (losses)/gains (charged)/credited (k&) EA
to profit or loss Bar (BE) a3 (15) 212
At 31 December M12A31H 1,027 1,042
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include the following: BARBEFAEENEREEREIN
TIER
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FET
Unlisted securities FEMES
— Equity linked note —REHBRIE 1,027 1,042

The Directors consider the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

are held for short-term profit making purpose.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were denominated in United

States dollar.

As at 3| December 2011, the Group’s financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss were pledged to a bank to secure certain loans and overdraft

facilities of certain subsidiaries.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

recorded in ‘other gains, net’ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income (note 19).
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R MY aE

BELF A5 - £5H
EXMBHAERELABHRAED T
LA

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Deferred tax assets: RIEFTEHEE
Deferred tax assets to be recovered &R 12 & A P& e
after more than |2 months MR TBE = 810 314
Deferred tax liabilities: RIEFRIBAE -
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered AR 12 18 A B e
after more than 12 months WIELERIBEE (448) (114)
362 200
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Br IS AR M EE

foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China, in respect of
earnings generated after 3|1 December 2008. The Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China are held by companies incorporated in Hong Kong and are

subject to 5% withholding tax.

As at 31 December 201 |, the Group had not recognised deferred income tax
assets in respect of tax losses of approximately HK$2,239,000 (2010:
HK$1,024,000) that can be carried forward to offset against future taxable

income.

ASR Holdings Limited 2071 Annual Report

8 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (Cont'd) 8 BEEMBH-AKE (&)
Deferred income taxes of the Group represent temporary differences under AEENEEMGER HIBREAREERA
the liability method using taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by RAERERBEAEZACEHAELSR
the balance sheet date in the respective jurisdictions. The movements in ﬁﬁﬁ'\]ﬁgﬁﬁ SNEREE c BEMER
deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) during the year are as follows: BE/ (BB RNABRBRANZEHER
mr
Withholding
tax relating
to unremitted Accelerated
earnings tax
BERE  depreciation
R=E iz Tax losses Total
HEAH REHE REER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THET THET
At | January 2010 R201051A1H — (6) 744 738
Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive EREBGEWEER
income (note 24) BeR (HaE24) (114) (208) (216) (538)
At 31 December 2010 R 2010512 A 31 H (114) (214) 528 200
Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive El: mAEkERP
income (note 24) R (Psr 24) (334) Gl 807 162
At 31 December 201 | 2011512 A31H (448) (525) 1,335 362
Withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from EPEAMKZAINERERIBERE

ERERAREER2008F 128318
REEANBIZIENH - AREF
WM B AR BERETMALNA
A5 A WA B RX5% M B NE

R20115612A318 - REB AR AE
ﬁ?%fﬁ&%ﬁﬂiwﬁ%}wﬁz/\mﬁlﬁﬁiﬂé
i’]?%2239000/%75( —TF
1,024,000 70) R IE Uﬁ SHEE °
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B4 75 45 % 3
TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 9 EBESEUFE-AEE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
Trade receivables B 5 WA 71,600 71,463
The Group's sales are mainly made on (i) cash on delivery; and (i) credit terms AEENHEFEROEIMF - R
of generally 30 to 60 days. —MRI0ZE60R FEH#ETT
The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximated their fair values. BoRBTENREEEREAABEMR
% o
As at 31 December 201 |, the ageing analysis of trade receivables based on R2011F128318 - BEZEZABHEL
invoice date was as follows: HESERBFBRE AT
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FTET
- 0 to 30 days —0&30K 45,871 42,389
- 31 to 60 days —31£60K 16,601 22,526
- 61 to 90 days —61Z290K 5,074 5,301
- Over 90 days — 90 RN E 4,054 1,247
71,600 71,463
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Bt 7 3R 3% B9 5

TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (Cont'd)

As at 3| December 201 |, trade receivables of approximately HK$25,2 18,000
(2010: HK$29,071,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of

default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

ESRUNE-AEE (&)

72011F12831H + #1425,218,000/%
TT(ZE—ZF : 29,071,000 7T) HE
SEWFECRBERRE EHE A

ROV EERCENELRFPER - %

FEHRINGRENRER O AT -

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT TET

- 0 to 30 days —0&E30K 15,446 21,396
- 31 to 60 days —31£60K 4,190 5164
- 61 to 90 days —B61Z290K 2,107 1,888
- Over 90 days — 90 KM E 3,475 623
25,218 29,071

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables were denominated in

AEEESRYFRENREENATIIE

the following currencies: %oE

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
- Hong Kong dollar BT 39,315 47392
- Renminbi —AR% 17,427 13,691
- United States dollar — %7 9,529 7,308
- Macau Patacas — R 640 662
- New Taiwan dollar —Hak 3,426 2,387
- Japanese Yen —Hx 1,218 —
- Other currencies —Hp g 45 23
71,600 71,463

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the balance sheet date is the fair REERERNEREERRAESE

values of the trade receivables. The Group did not hold any collateral as

security.
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10 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 10 BRRE - RERAMBERTE
The nature of prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at 31 December R2011E12A318 - BRNRE - Be Kk
2011 was as follows: HEKTIBENEBNT

Group Company
r5E VN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THER THET TER THET
Prepayments BRI RIE 5,607 765 4,384 —
Deposits tn 4,190 3,283 — —
Other receivables H e 50R 2,132 802 — —
11,929 4,850 4,384 —
Amounts due from shareholders JE Ui IR 3R B
(note (b)) (M EE (b)) — 4199 — _
Amounts due from non-controlling FENIEE IR
interests (note (b)) A (MEb) — 360 — —
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUFT A 7]
(note (b)) A (FEE(b) — — 50,000 —
11,929 9,409 54,384 =
Less: non-current portion: deposits " FEENEE S : ke (1,006) (360) — —
10,923 9,049 54,384 —
Notes: Ptz
(@) As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amounts of other receivables @ M2011F12A318  Be REMEK
approximated their fair values. FEMNEEEREALEEES -
(b)  The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. b) ZRERELER ZERAKRERE
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Br IS AR M EE

10 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Deposits and other receivables, amounts due from shareholders, non-

controlling interests and amount due from a subsidiary were denominated in

the following currencies:

10 BRNRE  BERAMERKE
(%)
BEREMERIE - BRER - HEE
M 4 e P B 2 R SRR A T3
&I :

Group Company
bie-. | AT

2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAT TERT TAL
- Hong Kong dollar — BT 1,631 7,235 54,384 —
- Renminbi —AR¥ 4,346 842 — —
- United States dollar —X7T 27 294 — —
- Macau Patacas —RAT — 272 — —
- Japanese Yen —H 240 — — —
- Other currencies —Hi g% 78 — —
6,322 8,644 54,384 —

Il PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP

1 BENER RERRSEEN-
AEE

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT THET

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 93,560 125917
Pledged cash at bank (note (a)) EEARTRE (MaTa) 19,569 5914
Pledged short-term bank deposits (note (a)) ~ EEFRERITER (Kista) 1,453 1,452
Pledged deposits BEHEMAER 21,022 7366
Total cash and bank balances Re RRITRBRETE 114,582 133,283
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PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP
(Cont'd)
Notes:

(@) As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the amounts were pledged to a bank to
secure certain loans facilities of certain subsidiaries and guarantees provided to

airline suppliers (note 32).

Total cash and bank balances were denominated in the following currencies:

11

BA RS R MY aE

BEAER BERBREEEY-

r&E8 (&)

PisE

(@ M2011F 128318 * ZEFIEE K H
FHIT ERETHBARNETER
BREARRETREAAEEENER
R (M E32) -

Re RBTERBEATIE®RIIE -

2011 2010

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT TET

- Hong Kong dollar BT 56,742 55422
- Renminbi —AR% 30,242 54,427
- United States dollar -7 17,086 7,382
- New Taiwan dollar —ak 5,144 5,155
- Macau Patacas — BT 1,886 10,802
- Japanese Yen —H 2,796 75
- Euro —ET 670 4
- Other currencies —HipE 16 16
114,582 133,283

Cash in bank earned interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits
rate. As at 3| December 2011, the carrying amounts of cash and cash

equivalents approximated their fair values.

As at 3| December 2011, the effective interest rates on pledged short-term
bank deposits were 0.2% (2010: 0.09%) per annum, and these deposits have an

approximate average maturity of 30 days.

The Group's RMB balances are placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a
freely convertible currency. The conversion of these RMB denominated
balances into foreign currencies in the PRC is subject to rules and regulations

of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

RITBESREBEBTERARFH:T
B M2011F12A318 Be kB E
EYVHEREEEEARBEMAS

R20114128318  EEAEHETHE
HOERFMES R AR02% (ZF—F
F:0.09%)  MZEFRTHLNI0A
P H o

AEENARBERFERR T HMR
T - ARBEIFERALER -EF
RRENARBINENESGARR
MBS o BT R 4 0 S EE AR B
ROEBEBR
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12 SHARE CAPITAL 12. B
Capital structure of the Company was as follow: ARENMERREBNOT :
Number of shares Share capital
REE BRA
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TERT
Ordinary shares of FREE
HK$0.01 each 0.01 BTTH & B
Authorised: EE
At | January K1A1H — — — —
Incorporation of Company R A ML 10,000,000 — 100 —
Addition NE 1,990,000,000 — 19,900
At 31 December K12 A31 A8 2,000,000,000 — 20,000 —
Issued and fully paid BREME0.01ETM
ordinary shares of BRTR
HK$0.01 each: BREBER
At | January n1A1H — — — —
Issue of shares BIIRD 10,000,000 — 100 —
At 31 December M12A31H 10,000,000 — 100 —

The Company was incorporated on 28 June 201 1.

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the completion of the
Reorganisation (note 29), the companies, which now comprising the Group,
were collectively controlled by the ultimate beneficiary owners, Mr.Yu Ho Yuen,

Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki (note 34).

On 3 December 201 |, the shareholders resolved to increase the authorised
share capital of the Company from HK$100,000 to HK$20,000,000 by the
creation of an addition of 1,990,000,000 shares.
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I3 RESERVES 13 fife
Group r&
Available-for-
sale financial
assets
Statutory revaluation
and legal reserve
Capital Exchange reserves At E Retained
reserve reserves EER SREE Sub-total earnings Total
ERfih EXGE SEfE Eftfith At REZA b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
TExL TExL Tt Tt T Tt TEL
Balance at | January 2010 R2010%1 B 1 BRER 5751 I 49 (13) 6530 48,666 55,19
Currency tranlation differences ~ E % - 30 — — 30 - 30
Revaluation of avallable-forsale WL HESBEES(E
financial assets — — — 16 116 — 116
Capital contribution Jid 709 — — — 709 - 709
Transfer to statutory reserve BRREERE = = 268 = 268 (268) —
Profit for the year ERgET] - - - - = 92,150 92,150
Dividends RS = = = = = (32626) (31626)
Balance at 3 December 2010 1420104 12 A 31 B4 6460 1,045 317 103 7925 107922 115847
Currency tranlation differences ~ E{Z% = 581 = = 581 — 581
Released upon disposal of RHEAREESRHEEN
avallable-for-sale financial assets IR = = = 19 19 — 19
Revaluation of available-forsale ~ ATEEMESBEEE(
financial assets — — — (88) (88) = (88)
Capital contribution i I - - - I - |
Disposal of subsidiaries HERELR (200) — — — (200) — (200)
Allotrment of shares AERIHA (100) - - - (100) - (100)
Transfer to statutory reserve BRRIRERE = = 786 = 786 (786) —
Profit for the year EREH — — — — — 97,305 97,305
Dividends RS = = = = — (100,536) (100,536)
Balance at 31 December 2011 2011512 A 31 RSt 6,161 1,626 [,103 34 8,924 103,905 112,829
Representing K
Reserves & 76,105
Proposed dividend RIER2 27,00
103,905
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13 RESERVES (Contd)

(@)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve as of | January 2010

The Company was incorporated on 28 June 201 | and the Reorganisation
was not completed prior to 3| December 2010. For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements, the capital reserve in the consolidated
financial statements represented the paid-in capital of subsidiaries of the

Company, after eliminating intra-group investments.

Capital reserve as of 31 December 201 |

Capital reserve as of 31 December 201 | represented the difference
between (i) the nominal amount of share capital issued by the Company
and the nominal amount of share capital of the subsidiaries transfer to
the Company pursuant to the Reorganisation of the Group that took
place in 2011 (note 29).

Statutory and legal reserves

Subsidiaries incorporated in Mainland China are required to make
appropriations to certain statutory reserves namely, statutory reserve
fund and discretionary reserve fund from their statutory profits for the
year after offsetting accumulated losses as determined under the PRC
accounting regulations from prior years and before profit distribution to
equity holders. The percentages to be appropriated to such statutory
reserves are determined according to the relevant regulations in
Mainland China at rates of not less than 10%, or at the discretion of the
boards of directors of the respective companies until the fund aggregates
to 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The transfer of these

reserves must be made before distribution of dividends to shareholders.
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13 RESERVES (Contd)

(b) Statutory and legal reserves (Contd)

Subsidiaries incorporated in Republic of China (“ROC") are required to
make appropriations to a legal reserve. According to the ROC Company
Law and the subsidiaries’ Articles of Incorporation, any annual earnings,
after paying income tax and offsetting accumulated deficit, if any, shall be

appropriated in the following order:

a.  10% thereof as legal reserve;

b.  Any remaining balance should then be appropriated in accordance
with the resolution of the stockholders in their regular annual

meetings; and

¢.  No more than 1% of the dividend declared as bonuses to

employees (payable only upon declaration of dividends).

In addition, in accordance with the ROC Company Law, the
aforementioned appropriation to legal reserve shall be made annually
until the reserve amount equals the subsidiary’s capital stock. Legal
reserve may be used to offset deficit, if any, and when the reserve
amount exceeds or equals 50% of the capital stock, an amount up to

50% of such reserve may be transferred to capital stock.

Subsidiary incorporated in Macao is required to set aside a minimum of
25% of the subsidiary’s profit after taxation to the legal reserve until the
balance of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the
subsidiary’s capital in accordance with the Macao Commercial Code
#377.

BA RS R MY aE

13 & (8)

(b)

EEREERE (B)

NP ERE ([FERE]) EMKL
WM B RARRERBERER - R
BRERBARZERMBRRNE
AL EAE - BB AT 15 75 L 3
2t B4 (A& - EEFEEAT
AR T IR BESK

a. H10%HABERE

b. AREMBRRBERRERE
HBERE LHRBREF
R

c. TERBI%WNEEERTES
(ERERKEFERMN) EATE
4T o

WoN - RERERBARE - ME
FREELN LB ETEE
- EZRELEEERHEAR
RBRA - &ERETAREKHEBA
(A) kinEELEEARAER
FRARHI50% * Bl&% R #ED0%
HeBIBRERRK -

RIBRFIBEEREITTHR - RIRP
kT B SZ B Bt BB 22 R 7R % EL B At 1
RPN AR LG BEE
A A AR E R E I B R ACHI50%
Bl
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13 RESERVES (Contd) 13 & (&)
Company
ARA
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
R 435 B FEBA At
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER
Balance at | January 201 | R2011 %181 BR&EH — — —
Acquisition of a subsidiary upon A B 48 Uk B
Reorganisation —XMEAE 125,239 — 125,239
Profit for the year F N A — 37,590 37,590
Balance at 3| December 201 | 2011512 A 31 BEV&H 125,239 37,590 162,829
Representing: ¥ -
Reserves &t 10,390
Proposed dividend EERE 27,200
37,590
14 TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP 14 BEENFTIE-AEEH
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Trade payables B R EMNTA 60,556 68,628
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TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP (Contd)
As at 3| December 2011, the ageing analysis of trade payables based on

invoice date was as follows:

BA RS R MY aE

14 BERARE-XAEE (B)
W20115128318 » REXZHHEL
NESEMZIBMERSITMT

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT TEL

0 to 30 days 0Z230K 29,999 30,975
31 to 60 days 31£60K 8,714 13,993
61 to 90 days 61 290K 5,439 494|
91 to 120 days 91 £ 120K 1,913 2,769
Over 120 days 120 XA 14,491 15,950
60,556 68,628

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables were denominated in the

following currencies:

AEBRSERAOEEENT &
WA

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000

TER T

— Hong Kong dollar BT 22,238 23,891
— Renminbi - AR 2,212 1,162
— United States dollar — &7 32,820 42,136
— New Taiwan dollar = 806 8
— Malaysia Ringgit —-BERARLHE 976 440
— Macau Patacas —BFMT 244 328
— Japanese Yen —H 482 —
— Euro — B E 40 38
— Others —Hfh 738 625
60,556 68,628

As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amounts of trade payables

approximated their fair values.

R201146128318 + E SR RIEA K
HEEEQALEBEEREE -
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B 7% R 2R MY =
I5 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 15 HetBARERERRA
Group Company
i ! VNN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FTET THERT TET
Accruals st 2R 14,615 5,524 — —
Deposits received BliEe 2,376 917 — —
Other payables H At e T 508 18 204 3,481 —
17,009 6,645 3,481
Amount due to a director JE - AR R SR IE
(note (b)) (Fft 3% (b)) 20 — — -
Amount due to a subsidiary FENEEFIE
(note (b)) (P (b)) — 13,313 _
17,029 6,645 16,794 —
Notes: Pidss
(a) As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amounts of other payables and accruals (a) M2011F128318 * B ERREM
approximated their fair values. nBEENRAEREALEBERS -
(b)  The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. (b) ZEFEDNEER  RERAREXE
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I5 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Contd)

Deposits received, other payables, amount due to a director and amount due

to a subsidiary were denominated in the following currencies:

the Financial Statements

B A5 SRR M &

15 HttEENREAREER (F)
ElReE  EMENZERENBRRER
BESHENA TS E -

Group Company
r&E Y N

201 1| 2010 201 | 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TAET TERT TET
— Hong Kong dollar — BT 818 205 16,794 —
— Renminbi - AR 1,563 583 — —
— United States dollar —E7T 7 — — —
— Macau Patacas — BT — 333 — —
— Others —HAt 26 — — —
2,414 [,121 16,794 —

BANK LOANS - GROUP

16 RITER-XKHE

2011 2010

HK$°000 HK$'000

THER TET

Trust receipt loans (note (a)) FEREBBEER (M () = 15916

Notes: Pz
(@) The above bank borrowings were secured by personal guarantees given by the (a) LEHMIBITEFRARRAESRENEA
Company's directors, corporate guarantees given by certain subsidiaries and the B BETHEQRRENAFAERR
Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and certain bank AEBERAABEABENSREE
deposits of the Group. PRASEE FRITFRERA
(b)  The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: o) AEBEUTHARBRARIRE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FTHERT
Expiring within one year R—FRER 53,647 29,685
(c) Asat 3| December 2010, the Group's bank loans were carried at floating rates (©) M2011F12A318 * AEBEHNRTE
and the weighted average effective rate were 3.99%. TREEBFAERMETHERFER
3.99% °
(d) As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amounts of the bank loans approximated (d) 20116128318 - |RITEFWEE

their fair values and were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

ERERABEME  YAETHE-
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116

17

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES - GROUP

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets would

revert to the lessor in the event of default.

17 BHEHEEE-X5E
HRYEHAEEENERSEEYRER
LA HHEAEER FAFEA -

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Gross finance lease liabilities MEMHERERR
— minimum lease payments —&EHEENK
No later than | year TER—F 8 8
Later than | year and no later than 5 years BR—FEATMERASE 16 24
24 32
Future finance charges RARBEE R “4) (8)
Present value of finance lease liabilities MEMEEENRE 20 24
The present value of finance lease MEMEREW
liabilities is as follows: REMT
No later than | year TER—F 5
Later than | year and no later than 5 years EBR—FETMERASE 14 19
20 24

SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are

principally engaged in the provision of air freight service in the wholesale

market.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Executive
Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group's internal reporting in

order to assess performance and allocate resources. Management has

determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the business from a

geographical perspective, i.e. by destinations of air freight service.
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B 5 SR AR Y
I8 SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 18. HERBER (&)
The segment information provided to the Executive Directors for the EZ2011E12R31BILEE  AATES
reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 201 | is as follows: LA R HEREHEN S BERDMT ¢
Europe America Asia-Pacific Africa Total
M EYl DABE M Azt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT TERT FERT TERT TERT
Sales to external MR P i E
customers 141,386 43,725 342,521 76,104 603,736
Cost of sales HEKAR (126,409) (39,862) (182,184) (69,703) (418,158)
Segment results DEEE 10,572 2,727 113,195 4,520 131,014
Unallocated APBFZFE
expenses, net (11,705)
Depreciation e (1,570)
Operating profit & A 117,739
Finance income, net BMEWAFHE 152
Profit before income tax Bk FT15 & Bl & 5 117,891
Income tax expense PSR (18,770)
Profit for the year F Mg A 99,121
Revenue of approximately HK$593,069,000 and HK$10,667,000 were derived TERBEEEANKEINANAR
from air freight and sea freight, respectively. 593,069,0007% 7T % 10,667,000/& 7T °
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Ly g EE
I8 SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 18. HERSBER (B)
The segment information provided to the Executive Directors for the BE2010F12A31BLLFE  ITES
reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2010 is as follows: HARmOBERUNSHLERMT -
Europe America Asia-Pacific Africa Total
M EM TAME FEM a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER TET TERT
Sales to external A SNER 2 S
customers 125,108 91,222 241,239 32,284 489,853
Cost of sales HEKAK (103,006) (85,618) (126,224) (30,021) (344,869)
Segment results D EPEE 16,348 4,145 85,068 1,672 107,233
Unallocated RAOBWAFE
income, net 1,337
Depreciation e (970)
Operating profit Sl 107,600
Finance costs, net BEK A HHE (497)
Profit before income tax BR FT15 5 A& F 107,103
Income tax expense FTiEHiA X (13.897)
Profit for the year F Mg A 93,206
Revenue of approximately HK$481,919,000 and HK$7,934,000 were derived TERBEELENREINANOR
from air freight and sea freight, respectively. 481,919,000/ 7t & 7,934,000/ 7T, ©
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19 OTHER GAINS, NET AND OTHER INCOME 19. Hipless - BEREMBA
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Other gains, net Hipz - B8
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of financial BARBEFABZNER
assets at fair value through profit or loss BELAEE CRL) /8Emn (15) 212
Gains on disposal of property, HEME - BB R&ZERER
plant and equipment 94 37
Net foreign exchange gains fE X s % 5 2,663 2,262
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries BB 2 A s 195 —
Losses on disposal of available-for-sale HERHLESREERR
financial assets (l6) —
2,921 2511
Other income Hit e A
Rental income Ha WA — 57
Dividend income from investment REREHREKA 194 102
Others Hity 94 190
288 349
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20 EXPENSES BY NATURE

120

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative expenses are analysed as

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEHEEDNRAX

FIAHERARITHRA XA D0

follows: %
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Cost of sales HE A 418,158 344,869
Employee benefit expenses, including EERNAX (BREEZHH)
directors’ emoluments (note 21) (BfaE 21) 34,945 25477
Depreciation (note 5) wE (M&Es) 1,570 970
Operating lease rentals for buildings BFKEeHEHRS 3,991 2,056
Auditor's remuneration ZEE BN & 1,768 702
Bad debt written-off 12 BRI 91 198
Marketing and promotion mSEERER 4,807 3,076
Professional service expenses BERBHRX 13,055 623
Travelling Z K 4,357 3,027
Communication Ban 1,445 1,088
Others Hit 5,019 3,027
Total cost of sales and administrative expenses  $HE 28 X 1T B 2 4B 58 489,206 385,113
Cost of sales recognised as expenses mainly included flight charges from ERARAXMHEXATIZBEMER

airlines and other freight forwarders.
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BA RS R MY aE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES BEEEAMAX
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Salaries, bonus and other welfares e AR EMBR 32,877 24,723
Pension - defined contribution plans (a) BRE - REEKE 2 () 2,068 754
34,945 25,477

(@)

Pension — defined contribution plans

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme") in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees in Hong Kong are each required to
contribute 5% of their gross earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,000 per
month to the MPF scheme.The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution

payable in future year.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes covering its full time PRC employees.
The schemes are administered by the relevant government authorities in
the PRC. The Group and the PRC eligible employees are required to
make contributions based on certain percentages of the applicable
payroll costs as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC. No forfeited contribution is available to

reduce the contribution payable in future year.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees or retirees other than the

defined contribution payments as disclosed above.

(a)

RIS - RERKTE
AEBRRELRHEAERE S
P 2E—-BRHELREE
([BEEEE) - RIEBBES S
MRE - BXIREEEEREARR
BRI Z R ET I 695 % [ 58 18 51 81 it
oo LRABMESEEA1,0008

e AEEFRE S EREOR
*f&ﬁ@%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%f
W e WEBRWA ST A SR R
REZ RGN

AEEOTEMBRRT2ERTE
HRRKTE  REE2BHERE
Bt mTEARRARES
B AKERTENGERERR
RETEORE  REERAIES
METBEDLELHR - ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
F#EAEEAEE T ENEA
MR RA RAR IR Wﬁa%f
REMEE - WERRAO G
R R RREFE R R

R ERRE RN ARE
EHEERRARABINRARE
tERERBRMOEMEE -
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B 35 3R AR MY &

22 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(@)

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of individual director of the Company during the years

which were included in the employee benefit expenses as disclosed in

22 EERGHREEEEHM
(a) EZHM

WNERME21 KRS ARERHN
F S B9 1 BB B E = 5 BN & 51 a0

note 2| are set out below: e
Pension
— defined
contribution
Salaries plans
and  Discretionary Rk
Name of Director Fees allowances bonus -RE Total
EEnE e  HERER BiEEA Rt & At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TR TR
Year ended BZE 20104
31 December 2010 12ANALFE
Director £
-Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny —FER — 1,800 — 12 1,812
- Mak Chi Hung Richard ~ — 251 — 1,440 — 12 1,452
- Law Kai Lo, Niki —BER — 510 2,250 12 2772
Independent BUFHITES
Non-Executive Director
- Zhang Xianlin —REM — - - - -
-Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony — — H#=E = = = = =
-Wei Jin Cai — B4 — — — — —
— 3,750 2,250 36 6,036
Year ended BZ201E
3| December 2011 12A3MALEE
Director Ex
-Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny —RER — 1,850 380 12 2,242
- Mak Chi Hung Richard ~ — 251 — 1,450 300 12 1,762
- Law Kai Lo, Niki —BER — 1,560 300 12 1,872
Independent BUEBITES
Non-Executive Director
- Zhang Xianlin —REM 90 — — — 90
-Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony ~ — A#E 105 — — — 105
-Wei Jin Cai — BB 180 — — — 180
375 4,860 980 36 6,251
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22 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

(@)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)

The remuneration shown above represents remuneration received from
the Group by these directors in their capacity as employees to the
Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the companies comprising

the Group during the year.

No director of the Company waived any emolument during the year
(2010: nil).

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the five individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Group include 3 directors (2010: 3
directors), whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented

above. The emoluments paid to the remaining 2 individuals are as follows:

B A5 SRR M &

22 EEREREEEHM (B

(a)

(b)

ESFEM ()
ERIATHFMERFAZFEE A
REERAEHEENIOR &
BEERAAEERETEARESH
S BARERINFH -

RER  RABEEMERETNM
(20104 : &) -

IEREFMAL
BZ2011F12A31BLLEE &%
BREAEniMALIBEIRES
(2010F : 3B EE) ' HENEHM
RMR LRS- MBT2EEAZ
e FMMT -

2011 2010

THER THET

Salary and allowances e kR 3,079 3017
Discretionary bonus BB IEAL 1,467 1,904
Pension - defined contribution plans RBke - REMHNEE 24 24
4,570 4,945
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22 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 22 EEREREEEBETHM (2

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Contd) (b) EERBHEMAL (B
The emoluments of the remaining 2 (2010: 2) individuals for the year BZE2011F12A31 B LFERNHRT
ended 31 December 201 | fell within the following bands: 24 (2010%F - 28) ALHVFBAN T
ATEE
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TERT
Emolument bands (in HK$) FiNEE (CABTED)
HK$500,001 - HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 AT E 1,000,000 AT =
HK$ 1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /8 7L E 2,000,000 /& 7T [ —
HK$2,500,001- HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T E 3,000,000 87T | —
HK$4,000,001- HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 /& 7T £ 4,500,000 & 7T = I
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the RER AEERERNENESHAA
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or BmaMA TN EREMERMAR
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2010: nil). SEHMARE B RE AR BB

{8 (20104 : &) -

23 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS), NET 23 MEWRA/ (KA T8
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Finance income MmEWA
Interest income on short-term bank deposits 52 HRSR 1717 5K | B UL A 300 179
Finance costs & A
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITRBRAE X H (145) (649)
Interest expense on finance lease liabilities REHEEEENESL (3) (27)
(148) (676)
Finance income/(costs), net MEWA (BAR) FH 152 (497)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the

estimated assessable profits during the years.

Macao complementary tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from 3% to
9% on the taxable income above MOP32,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,000) but below MOP300,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$291,000), and thereafter at a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended 31
December 2010 and 2011, a special complementary tax incentive was
provided to effect that tax free income threshold was increased from
MOP32,000 to MOP200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$31,000 to
HK$194,000) with the next MOP100,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$97,000) of profit being taxed at a fixed rate of 9% and thereafter at a fixed
rate of 12%.

The Group's operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC corporate
income tax. The standard PRC corporate income tax rate is 25%. Preferential
rate of 5% withholding income tax is also imposed on dividends relating to any
profits earned commencing from | January 2008 to foreign investors

incorporated in Hong Kong.

BA RS R MY aE

24 FRBHAX

REANEBMEH I ERB R
M$216.5% HY B R 5t 2 B

SRR 7R Tt & R32,0008 M T (1 E
R #731,0007% 7T) {815 % 300,000 FI 7T
(1B &M 49291,000/% 70) M FE RBMA IR
NIIREINMBRERREM MBS
SHEAZETHER12%HF - HZE2010
FR2011E12A318 L FERESFIH
FIRE - HERTAL RS
32,0002 9701 £200,0008 I T (18 &
R #31,0008 7L £194,0008 7T) © H %
100,000/2 17T (18 & 7 4797,000% 7T) £
JE R B8 IR E B R 9% AT » HE
SEHERDE M BIRE TR E12% M
B o

AEERPEAMNEE AN R
EMAH  BERBECEMBHXA
25% ° 520084 1 A 18 R HEA E R
Rl & & Ak M SNBI 4R B 2 R A
REBRS%NEBEREHBMBNRAE
i
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24

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

24

Taxation outside Hong Kong and Mainland China has been calculated on the

FEHEX (&)

BB RTFENEANNBIREREFA

estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in A ERTENEAEELEMERR
the countries in which the Group operates. BIImEHE -
2011 2010
TER TET
Current taxation RITHEA
Hong Kong profits tax BENEH 3,715 1,093
Taxation outside Hong Kong BRFEIHIE
Macau il 12,112 11,392
Mainland China FEI A 2,475 762
Taiwan 2 467 112
15,054 12,266
(Over)/under-provision in prior year BEFE (BEEHE) BETR
Hong Kong profits tax BENGEHR (487)
Taxation outside Hong Kong BRFEINGIE 650
163
Deferred taxation (note 8) BRI (M 8) (162) 538
18,770 13,897
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24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd) 24 FRERMEX (B)
The taxation on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical AE B R AT & M R R R R AR
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to AR EE T 1 Bl M &) T
profits of the companies comprising the Group as follows: MERFENEBRRBLEZENT

2011 2010

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT THET

Profit before income tax BR PR1SH A A 117,891 107,103

Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to profits ¥ 38 Fi 1Y %5 Y /& 22 &) 4 £

of the respective subsidiaries B X EHHIE 17,305 13,321
Tax losses for which no deferred AERELEFEREENTIRER

income tax asset was recognised 712 67
Income not subject to tax BRABHKA (48) (107)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose OEIEitiha 117 470
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses )8 2 Al R R A T H & 18 I (68)
Recognition of previously BRZAAEANERUERE

unrecognised temporary difference 186 —
Under-provision in prior year BEFEBEERE 163 —
Withholding tax on unremitted earnings of o B O 3 P /B 2 IR B R A B TR

subsidiaries in Mainland China 334 [14
Income tax expense PSR X 18,770 13,897

25 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 25 BEFAARERN

Profit attributable to equity holders for the period from 28 June 201 | (date of R201166A 288 (GEfi kL A #) &
incorporation) to 31 December 201 | is dealt with in the financial statements 2011 12A31BILHR - BaEHE AR
of the Company to the extent of HK$37,590,000. ERMREARAMBRRIAR - RE

37,590,000/ 7T °
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26 EARNINGS PER SHARE

128

(@)

Basic

26 BREA

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year

attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year

ended 31 December 2011 used in the basic earnings per share

calculation is determined on the assumption that the 10,000,000 ordinary

shares with par value of HK$0.01 each issued during the year and the
290,000,000 shares with par value of HK$0.0l each issued upon the

Capitalisation Issue and Reorganisation (note |) had been in issue prior

to the incorporation of the Company, which is the same assumption for

the basics earnings per share calculation for the year ended 3|

December 2010.

(a)

E- %S
BREXRANAADAERREE
AEBEFREMEAFANEETE
BRAMETHHE Mt B

ARG ESRERBMHOEE2011
F12ANBLEFEER#ITEBRE
METHETERNBRFERASET
#910,000,000 AR A E0.015 T
MEBREBEERNMCETREA
(HT5E1) #17£9290,000,000% = %
EE0.01ETHRMERNARAF
Az AT E 1T (AR A £2010F12
RAINBLFESRERBIGER
HRRR) METE

Profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company (HK$'000)

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue (in thousand shares)

Basic and diluted earnings per share

(HK cents per share)

ARG A AREGN (TET)

EETERROMETHE (TR

BREAREERMN (BEOEW)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average

number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all

dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 3| December 201 | and

2010 are the same as the basic earnings per share as there is no

potential ordinary share for the year ended 3| December 2011 and

2010.
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2011 2010
97,305 92,150
300,000 300,000
32.44 30.72

e

BREFRFDEBMBRRA AR
RERBELARARETEINE
BB METHBMAEGS -

BREZE2011F K% 2010F12H 31
AEFEYREFEEMERL R
B B EZE2011F % 2010512
AINBLEFENEGREERFET
REARFAER -
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27 DIVIDENDS 27 RE
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Interim dividends declared and paid by AEEMB AR E IR KK
subsidiaries of the Group (note (a)) B ERR S (Bt (a)) 100,000 32,626
Final dividends declared and paid by AEENE R RE KR
subsidiaries of the Group (note (a)) B RERR S (BiE(a)) 536 160
Final dividend proposed by the Company — AARHRA RS —
HK6.8 cents per share (note (b)) B 6.8 (b)) 27,200 =
127,736 32,786
Notes: Ptz
(@) Dividends were declared by the subsidiaries of the Group to their then equity a) AEEMBRARAKSERNERRS
holders. AERKE o
(b) Dividend was declared by the Company to its equity holders. The amount of (b) AREMEERFEATERE ©2011

proposed final dividend for 201 | was based on 400,000,000 shares in issue as at

27 March 2012.

FRERARESENRIE201263A
27H #9400,000,000/% B B 1T A B E
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28 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 28 HREARERERM T
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated from (a) BREGEHARANEREELIER
operations LFEYE
2011 2010
THERT FHAT
Profit before income tax B FT 15 1 A A 117,891 107,103
Adjustments for: FLATIER#E -
Interest income FEWA (300) (179)
Interest expense MEZ T 148 676
Depreciation & 1,570 970

Gains on disposal of property,

HEVE - BERRERR

plant and equipment (94) (37)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR M (195) —
Losses on disposal of HEARELEEREERE

available-for-sale financial assets 16 =
Bad debt written-off 122 AR L 5 9l 198
Dividend income R EWA (194) (102)
Decrease/(increase) in fair value BARBEFAERNEREE

of financial assets DREERY,/ (Em)

at fair value through profit or loss 15 (212)
Exchange differences BE W, =R = 290

118,948 108,707
Changes in working capital: LEEeEE
Trade receivables g S EWHIA 239 (22,131)
Prepayments, deposits and ERNRIE - B REMEKRKIE

other receivables (3,094) (3,044)
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFAERNEREE

through profit or loss — 3,015
Pledged deposits BEHERER (13,656) (5915)
Trade payables B 5 ENFIA 9,178) 17,955
Other payables and accruals Hit R HERETER 10,592 12,801
Cash generated from operations REXBHERE 103,851 111,388
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28 NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Contd)
(b)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of

property, plant and equipment comprise:

BA RS R MY aE

28 HMARERERMEE (B)
(b) REARERBRA HENE.
BERRENAEHECRE

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TEL
Net book amount (note 5) BRmEFE (KMEE5) 506 260
Gains on disposal of property, HEME - BB RXEKE (FHEE19)
plant and equipment (note 19) 94 37
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERRERERE
plant and equipment 600 297
Non-cash transactions (c) ¥ELXR%Z

Dividends of approximately HK$22,330,000 (2010: nil) were settled

through current accounts with equity holders during the year

F N #22,330,0007 7T (20104 :
D)NRENEREERE ERERE

o

R
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Br IS AR M EE

28 NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Contd)

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire interests in two
subsidiaries, China Pacific Logistics (H.K.) Limited and Integrated Cargo
Solutions (China) Limited to an independent third party at a total

consideration of HK$800,075.

28 BREBRERERMT ()
(d) HEKEARH
FRN - AEBEKEB00,075%
o & E R R R B 2 B (R AR
(£%) AR 2 7 & Integrated
Cargo Solutions (China) Limited)
Me2HEsT —E2BUE=FH -

Year ended 3| December 201 |
BZ201MF 12831 BLEEE

China Pacific
Logistics
(H.K.) Limited
AR Integrated
(&%) Cargo Solutions Total
BMRATF  (China) Limited st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEn FiE5n Fia5n
Property, plant and equipment e E = 3 3
Prepayment, deposits and ERHE Ee Kk
other receivables H i fE d R 619 — 619
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBReFEEY 383 3 386
Trade payables B HREMNRIE — (10) (10)
Other payables and accruals H At e~ 5B R e AT B A (2) (254) (256)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (AR 8 1,000 (258) 742
Percentage of equity interest REBEERMARKEL B
owned by the Group 80% 75%
Share of net assets/(liabilities) BIEEE,/ (BE) 8 800 (195) 605
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & K B2 7] — 195 195
Consideration KB 800 — 800
Net outflow of cash and cash HENTEENR e KR
equivalents on disposal of: EEWRLFE
Proceed already received REFIEES ¢ 800 — 800
Cash and cash equivalents in jiNFidenk-i )= NEIL: D)
subsidiaries disposed of BehReEEY (383) A3) (386)
417 3) 414
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29 REORGANISATION
In preparing for the listing, the following reorganisation activities were carried

out:

(i) On 31 December 2010, ASR Limited, a company directly wholly owned
by the Controlling Shareholders, acquired 45% equity interests of
ASRCO Logistics Limited (“ASRCO") from the non-controlling equity
holder at the consideration of HK$ 1,237,500. Thereafter, ASRCO

became a wholly owned subsidiary of ASR Limited.

(i)  On 3 June 2011, ASR Victory Limited (*ASR Victory”) was incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and owned by Mr. Sunny Yu and Mr. Richard
Mak.

(i) On 3 June 2011, ASR Champion Limited ("ASR Champion”) was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by ASR
Victory.

(iv) On 6 October 2011, the Controlling Shareholders transferred their
entire equity interests in ASR Limited to ASR Champion by way of a
share swap in consideration of ASR Champion issuing one consideration

share to ASR Victory credited as fully paid.

29 E4

BA RS R MY aE

RERELT  CETUTERRD :

(iii)

(iv)

201012A318 - AT ERE
2 BHEBMAFASR Limited 3F
EREEFAE AKEASRCO
Logistics Limited ([ASRCO] ) &
45%M # - R B & 1,237,500%
JL o bt % - ASRCOR & ASR
Limited®) 2 &K B A F] °

20119 6H3H + ASR Victory
Limited ([ASR Victoryl) R R B &
TEHEHMKYL - BRERLER
BEBEERES -

20114 6A3H * ASR Champion
Limited (TASR Champion]) 7 5B
RS M - AASR Victory
2EHE -

2011F10A6H  BEREREBR
B % ERASR Limitedf 2 35 % 1
# 2= FASR Champion' KRB A
ASR ChampionRASR Victory 1T
TRARS REENRERD
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29 REORGANISATION (Cont'd)

)

On 28 October 2011, ASR Limited acquired 100%, 100%, 100% and 31%
equity interests in Pacific Empire International Limited, OA Cargo Limited,
Star Cargo (Thailand) Limited and Star Pacific Logistics Limited from the
Controlling Shareholders, respectively. In settlement of which, ASR Victory
issued and allotted 200 shares to the Controlling Shareholders.

On 3 December 201 |, the Company and the Controlling Shareholders
entered into a share swap agreement (“Share Swap Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Share Swap Agreement, the Company acquired the
entire issued share capital of ASR Champion from the Controlling
Shareholders in consideration of the Company (i) crediting as fully paid,
the subscriber share transferred to ASR Victory; and (ii) issuing, credited
as fully paid 9,999,999 shares to ASR Victory.

During the year, the Group has disposed of the following subsidiaries to

independent third parties:

()

(i

China Pacific Logistics (H.K.) Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary,

Jiangxi Chengbei Airline Cargo Limited, at a total consideration of

HK$800,000; and

Integrated Cargo Solutions (China) Limited at consideration of HK$75.
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(v)

(vi)

29 EMf (&)

20114 10H28H * ASR Limited®
Bl A 2 BB R KB R Pacific
Empire International Limited * OA
Cargo Limited * Star Cargo
(Thailand) Limited &% A ¥ % 2Bt
BB R A H100% > 100% °
100% %31 %18 o A %
T8 » ASR Victory[#2 i IR R 31T
At %2000k AR

20115 12A38 » A2 R EER AR
R mRinz (TRRBE]) 8
BRIBE - A2 R ERRRK
BEASR Championf) 2 28 E %17 %
A REBKRDF)HEASR Victory
BEZNABARND ARIIEM
2 ¢ BAR(i)RASR Victory® 17
9,999,999 A BR 5 E & B B 17 ©

R AEEABIESHHEUTH
BAA

(i)

(ii)

PAMR (BE)ERATRELE
b7 /8 2 Al Jiangxi Chengbei Airline
Cargo Limited * # & £800,000
BT R

Integrated Cargo Solutions

(China) Limited * KB R75ETT °
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30 COMMITMENTS

31

Operating lease commitments
The Group leases certain office premises under non-cancellable operating

lease agreements.

The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

30

BA RS R MY aE

i

TEHERE
AEERETHELEHERARE
ETHAEYE -

AEBRZETTHBEEERERTA
ARRERENMFEBDT :

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER THET
Not later than | year TER—F 3,632 2,172
Later than | year and not later than 5 year BR—FETERLF 1,322 2,082
4,954 4,254

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 H¥ARS

Related parties refer to entities in which the Company has the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions, or directors or

officers of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Except as disclosed elsewhere, during the year, the following transactions were

carried out with related parties at terms mutually agreed by both parties:

BARE ) AR R AL 50 B 1 S R A I &9
A-ABHR TR BERBLRRE

BERYENNER  FEARARA

WEARIMEZHRAME

BREMBEMBEEIN - RE R EBR
HEREFHERENRTETTUTR
2

(@) Transactions (a) X%
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Cost of services paid (] B Bk 2 B] S A Y
to related companies: R
Pacific Well (H.K.) Limited Pacific Well (H.K.) Limited 93 —
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31

32

136

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(b)

(©)

31 BHARS (B)

Balances (b) #8R
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TERT
Included in trade payables: FABZENTE
Pacific Well (HK.) Limited Pacific Well (H.K.) Limited 9l —

The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable according to the

trading terms.

Key management compensation
Key management includes directors and senior management. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services

is shown below:

BREER RERAREES

L [ o
ERERE -

(c) TEEBAESHM
IZERABORESRARER
B -HEERBENKAENTESE
BABKFMIIRAT

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER FET

Salaries, bonus and other welfares e CAREMmER 13,066 |'1,848
Pension - defined contribution plans BRe - REMHRNGE 143 97
13,209 [1,945

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Company's subsidiaries have issued bank guarantees to certain airline

suppliers as securities for purchase of air cargo space. At 3| December 201 |,

the guarantees granted amounted to approximately HK$49,553,000 (2010:
approximately HK$19,499,000).
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32 MBER
ARAMBRREME TMERRMHE
HELHRTER (EFREEMEEYR
fIE A - B20115F12A318 - B
B ¥ R 4 A 49,553,000 7T (2010
F : #4919,499,000% 7T) °
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant event took place subsequent to 31 December 201 I:

(a) Public listing and allotment of shares to public equity holders
On 16 January 2012, the share allotment option as detailed in the
Prospectus was exercised and the Company has allotted and issued
100,000,000 shares at the Offer Price raising gross proceeds of HK$93

million.

(b) Capitalisation of share capital
On 16 January 2012, 290,000,000 shares were issued by way of
capitalisation of share premium on the proceeds from the allotment of
100,000,000 shares stated in note (a) under the Capitalisation Issue as

detailed in the Prospectus.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
ASR Victory is the immediate and ultimate holding company of the Group.
Prior to the Reorganisation, Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard

and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki were the ultimate beneficiary owners of the Group.

33

34

BA RS R MY aE

REHEZEE
ATFEAREEIR2011E12A31 814 %

K

(a)

(b)

ARLITROABRKRRERRHG
2012618168 + BREIEAH
MARNEEERERITEREAR
AR BEEERE®ERED
100,000,000 R 17 * BE&EMER
TE #%893,000,000/8 T °

BANER(

720126 1A 168 + 290,000,000
BB BRRERAFLNE
AL AT T MY & (a) AT 32 8 B 3
100,000,000 A% {7 &) Fff 15 5% 38 Y
Befn i BE AL MELT -

RAERAT

ASR Victory B A EBR ER R KR IERA
Ao REMR - REREE BEEE
ERBERLEAREENRIKERE
BA o
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Glossary

o

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall

have the following meanings.

"ACE Freight”

"ASR Logistics”

“ASR Worldwide"

"“ASR Victory”

“BAHT"
“Board”

"“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

“Company”

AOE Freight (HK) Limited (8 &EBRAF) | a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 30 April 1991
and wholly-owned by ASR Limited

ASR Logistics Limited CBFIRABRATF]) | a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong on 24 January 2007 and
wholly-owned by ASR Limited

ASR Worldwide Logistics Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong on 3 April 2008, being 60%
owned by ASR Limited and 40% owned by Worldwide

Logistics

ASR Victory Limited, a limited liability company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands on 3 June 2011, being 33.33%
owned by Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki and Mr.
Mak Chi Hung, Richard

Thai Baht, the lawful currency of Thailand
the board of Directors of the Company

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in
the context of our Company means Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr.
Law Kai Lo, Niki, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard and ASR Victory

ASR Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated
with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands and
the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange
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"“Director(s)”
“Group”

“GSA”

“HKS”
“Hong Kong”
Py

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Main Board”

“MOP”

“PRC”

“Prospectus”

“RM

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)"

the director(s) of the Company
the Company and its subsidiaries

a general sales agent appointed by an airline which typically
authorises such general sales agent to exclusively represents
the airline in a region or territory in relation to that airline’s
particular segment of business e.g. air cargo space or

passengers tickets

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of Japan

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange
Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the stock market operated by the Stock Exchange, which
excludes the Growth Enterprise Market and the options

market
Macau Patacas, the lawful currency of Macau

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of

this announcement, Hong Kong, the Macau Special

Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

the Company’s prospectus dated 30 December 201 |

Ringgit Malaysia, the lawful currency of Malaysia

share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company

shareholder(s) of the Company

[E%) i
[A&E] &

[BHE i
RE]

&) i

(&%) i

(B[] i
[EmRA) 5

&P 15

[E2T 15

RFT) 48

[ E) i

(%] 15
[Hfn) 15

[HR) i

Glossary

il

ARREE
ARRI REME DR

MERAIZENLIEE
RE MERAARE
— {8 & 3 B 1 39 4R 4 AT
BREEREBERRE
MEARNBEEXRK
B mEEE MR

2R

BREEERET
hEEBRHTHE
AAREEE®AHE
BRMES LTRA

PEDRPIR 1T R

ABREBNRES
5 TEEAIER K
%

RFAEEERMT

REARAME - BAA
FHmE ABEE
B BRI R RIT

BRkAaE

ARF BEA2011412

A0BEHEERER

SRETEEERHE
RRRRA T ZREE

0.0178 T B {7
ARRRIBER

BMFEERERAT 2011 F#

139



"“Stock Exchange”

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

United States Dollar, the lawful currency of the United States

of America

Worldwide Logistics Limited (R EEH R A A]), a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 5 January
2001, being 60% owned by Mr. Joseph Patrick Monaghan and
40% owned by Mr. Fong Wai Ming Francis Willy, both being
independent third parties
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